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o

Andrew Nagorski Jerzy Kozminski
Chairman of the Board President and Chief
of Directors Executive Officer

Dear Ferenns,

In the previous Annual Report we shared our hope that in May 2020 we would be able to commemorate the twen-
tieth anniversary of the establishing of the Polish-American Freedom Foundation, which would be an occasion to
summarize its achievements.

The coronavirus pandemic thwarted our plans for the jubilee events that we had been preparing for several
months. We had expected to attract nearly a thousand leaders of non-governmental organizations as well as
other institutions involved in PAFF actions, including hundreds of Kirkland alumni from Eastern Europe, the South
Caucasus, and Central Asia. Since all those plans had to be shelved, here is a summary of some of the points we
would have made.

PAFF initiated its first programs in May 2000 and from the very outset its activities were grounded in a two-fold
mission. First, they sought to strengthen the outcomes brought about by the Polish systemic changes initiated in
1989. Second, they aimed to share Poland's transformation experience with other countries of the region.

Carefully selected goals have governed PAFF's activity in Poland ever since: leveling the playing field in education
combined with raising its overall quality, as well as unleashing citizen energy in small communities which contribu-
tes to building social capital. From the very beginning these endeavors have primarily targeted residents of small
towns and rural areas.

Foundation programs have for years been focused on three main areas: education, development of local commu-
nities, and sharing Poland's transformation experience.

By the end of 2020, PAFF had allocated nearly $225 million to its activities. The source of those funds was the capi-
tal transferred to PAFF from the Polish-American Enterprise Fund, PAFF's founder, which entrusted a total of $255
million to the Foundation. It is also noteworthy that over the 20 years of its activity, PAFF attracted $226 million for
its programs from other sources.

Those financial resources made it possible for PAFF to offer 32,000 scholarships to young people from low-income
families, allowing them to continue their education at the university level. They also enabled the training of 150,000
teachers in modern teaching methods.

A total of 40,000 educational projects arranged by more than 15,000 student volunteers reached 430,000 rural

children and youth. In parallel, 17,000 diverse undertakings were implemented across Poland to stimulate local
community development.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation



LETTER FROM THE PAFF LEADERSHIP

Nearly 4,000 libraries in villages and small towns underwent a transformation into modern centers of informa-
tion, education, culture, and civic activity, with training provided to just under 10,000 librarians. PAFF received
the bulk of the funding from the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, which fueled these far-reaching changes in
the library system.

PAFF training programs also attracted 31,000 leaders and staff members of NGOs operating primarily in rural
areas and small towns. The participants vastly improved their managerial and other skills.

More than 14,000 young people from Ukraine, Belarus, Russia, Georgia, Moldova, Armenia, Azerbaijan, and
other countries visited Poland and learned about Polish experiences in internal transformation and integration
with the West.

Interestingly, from among PAFF's first programs that were launched in 2000, six are still in existence until today.
“English Teaching” has led to more than 1,100 educational projects which promoted learning English and simulta-
neously sparked interesting civic initiatives in rural and small-town areas. The “English Teaching” projects attracted
more than 73,000 children and youth, and nearly 5,000 teachers.

Another major educational program, “Learning Schools” (LES), has reached 3,000 schools and thousands of
teachers. “LES” seeks to elevate the quality of education by employing the best foreign and domestic practices.

“Act Locally”, PAFF's first program to offer grants to small NGOs and informal groups, provided support to more
than 12,000 civic initiatives aimed at solving local problems and involving residents in actions for jointly determi-
ned goals. These initiatives engaged 4 million people, including 200,000 volunteers. The program helps to ste-
adily expand the network of Act Locally Centers (ALCs), which award donations under open grant competitions.
This network has grown from 15 ALCs in 2004 to 78 today, and is present in 670 communes across Poland.

The ngo.pl Portal for Non-governmental Organizations continues to evolve since its launch in 2000; it constitutes
the cornerstone of the information system for civic organizations, supporting Poland's third-sector infrastruc-
ture overall. The last two decades have brought major technological developments to the Portal, whose impact
vastly increased.

The number of Kirkland alumni is now 880. This very first international PAFF program has supported young leaders
of economic, social, and political walks of life in eleven countries of our region.

Over the twenty years of its operation, “Region in Transition” (RITA), another east-oriented program, provided
support to nearly 1,100 projects furthering cooperation between Polish non-governmental organizations and edu-
cational institutions, and their partners in Eastern Europe, the South Caucasus, and Central Asia.

2020 was an exceptional year for all, including our Foundation; it marked the outbreak of the coronavirus pan-
demic whose acute effects are felt across the globe to this day. The new situation spurred significant shifts in
PAFF's program activities. Sanitary restrictions caused almost all conferences, seminars, workshops, and other
meetings to shift to online. At the same time, many PAFF programs redesigned to respond to pandemic-related
needs and challenges.

As an example, a series of open webinars on remote teaching was held under the “LES” Program, providing
assistance to more than 100,000 teachers and school principals. There was also keen interest in the cycle of
17 webinars for teachers as well as other professional and social educators organized by the School of Educa-
tion of PAFF and the University of Warsaw; webinar subjects reflected the needs arising from the exceptional
situation at schools. These attracted a total of 13,000 participants.
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“Act Locally” channeled all funds initially earmarked for 2020 regular local grant competitions to initiatives suppor-
ting the fight against the pandemic and mitigating its destructive effects on communities covered by the program.
“"Act Locally” awarded 882 grants which made up a total of almost $1 million. PAFF contributed $450,000 of that
amount, with the remaining funds coming from local sources. Also, the “Anti-Crisis Package” was launched that
provided Act Locally Centers with $60,000 of ad hoc support early in the pandemic.

The Library Development Program provided online training to 30,000 librarians in mid-pandemic library mana-
gement, delivering remote services to local communities as well as leveraging new technologies for internal work
organization and experience exchanges with other libraries.

April 2020 saw the Polish-American Freedom Foundation establish the special “Relief Fund for Non-Governmental
Organizations and Civic Initiatives”. To this day, the “Relief Fund” supports ongoing activities undertaken by orga-
nizations in response to the COVID crisis, and offers assistance in designing and implementing actions to mitigate
the long-term effects of the pandemic.

By the end of 2020, “Relief Fund” grants for co-financing institutional needs and program activities reached
15 organizations that serve as PAFF Program Managers, 36 ALCs and “Study Tours to Poland” coordinators,
as well as 49 other organizations which were implementing initiatives aligned with PAFF's programmatic goals.
To date, PAFF has delivered $1.6 million from the “Relief Fund” to non-governmental organizations and civic initia-
tives during the pandemic.

At the end of this challenging period, we wish to express our heartfelt gratitude to our colleagues who are part of
the dedicated PAFF team, as well as all our partners and other institutions and groups involved in PAFF programs.
We extend sincere thanks to the members of the PAFF Board of Directors for their unwavering support, invaluable
knowledge and important advice. With particular gratitude we remember those who passed away and could not
accompany us in taking stock of the twenty years of PAFF activity: John P. Birkelund, Zbigniew Brzezinski, Frederick
M. Bohen, John H. D'’Arms, Robert G. Faris, Aleksander Koj, and Nicholas A. Rey.

It is our conviction that the experience accrued by the Polish-American Freedom Foundation over the past two
decades, coupled with its achievements form a robust and durable underpinning for PAFF's further development.
Above all, we know that, with the continued support of so many people and institutions, we are well-positioned to
carry on with PAFF's mission.

New York - Warsaw, June 2021

-

II |
Iibes Maguoske 7% _',?f.?ft_.

Andrew Nagorski Jerzy Kozminski
Chairman of the Board of Directors Presidentand CEO

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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Initiatives in Education

ENGLISH TEACHING

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$ 8,886,019

in grants, including $ 616,170 in 2020.

Foundation

PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The “Nida” Development

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.englishteaching.org.pl

Since 2000, this program has initiated and supported actions to promote the English language

and improve its teaching standards among children and youth from small towns and villages,
thus strengthening their educational opportunities overall. At the same time, the program fosters
the professional development of English teachers working in small towns and rural areas.

1 E nglish Teaching” stimulates and develops a varie-

ty of social initiatives. Their results often surpass
the initial goal, leading to the general spurring of acti-
vity in local communities. The program is mostly aimed
at English language teachers working in primary schools
and kindergartens based in rural areas and small towns.
In the past, many initiatives were organized at junior
high schools, but they no longer exist. The program in-
cludes training sessions for teachers, coupled with the
possibility of implementing projects with their pupils;
it also provides help in preparing these undertakings.

Between 2000 and 2020, grant competitions addressed
to small-town schools and non-governmental organiza-
tions financed 1,116 projects to organize school clubs for
fans of Anglo-Saxon culture and English, create libraries
with English literature and press, and form theatrical
clubs. The program led to organizing numerous contests
focused on Anglo-Saxon writers, culture, and history, as
well as some song festivals. Children and teenagers were
invited to watch English films and take part in lessons
with native speakers of English. Around 72,000 pupils
and 4,700 teachers participated in the projects directly,
and over 170,000 parents and other representatives of
local communities were engaged indirectly.

The program also offers “Weekends with English Teaching”,
namely methodology training for English teachers based

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

in towns and villages with populations up to 20,000. To
date, 142 such training sessions have been organized for
a total of 6,513 participants.

The most active teachers can increase their competen-
cies during the three-week Teaching English to Speakers
of Other Languages (TESOL) Summer School organized
by Gonzaga University in the USA.

17 nation-wide educational meetings - English Teaching
Markets - were organized for English teachers and re-
presentatives of interested institutions, organizations,
schools, and publishing houses; they attracted almost
9,000 attendees. These annual meetings help expand
the cooperation network of English teachers from smal-
ler localities; they are backed up with a social media por-

1,116

projects were funded through grant
competitions addressed to schools
and non-governmental organizations
in small localities.



tal and regular e-news about other educational initiati-
ves, such as grants for projects, training, or contests.

The “English Teaching” Polish English Teachers Associa-
tion was founded in 2015, developed from the “English
Teaching Ambassadors” initiative - the most active te-
achers participating in the program. Its main purpose is
the professional development of English teachers from
small towns and villages in particular, as well as advoca-
ting social activity.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

In 2020, because of the pandemic restrictions, the pro-
gram offered mostly online training sessions, as well as
weekly webinars held by experts and trainers in coope-
ration with Instaling which attracted over 50,000 parti-
cipants in total. The annual English Teaching Market me-
eting did not take place. English teachers who cooperate
with the program were provided support in terms of me-
thodology and techniques of remote teaching. Teachers’
language projects for students, which began in Septem-
ber were mostly carried out online.

PROJECTOR - STUDENT VOLUNTEERS

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$7,475,029

in grants, including $321,361 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGER:

» The Educational Enterprise
Foundation

WIECEJ INFORMAC]I:
www.projektor.org.pl

The purpose of the program is to equalize education opportunities of children and youth
from villages and small towns. Under this program, groups of 2 to 3 volunteer university
students carry out projects that expand knowledge, skills, and personal interests of kids
and teenagers. The projects are carried out in free time during the school year and during

summer and winter holidays.

hey focus on a specific field of science, subject, or

a selected scope of activity; these can be visual art
classes, artistic classes, sport activities, IT classes, the-
atrical or language classes. The program encourages
pupils to develop their skills by promoting positive role
models and, at the same time, it shapes university stu-
dents’ sense of social responsibility and solidarity while
providing them with an attractive way to discover and
fulfil their passions and interests.

Since 2003 more than 40,000 educational projects have
been organized across Poland, more than 2,800 scho-
ols with 14,700 volunteer students involving more than
430,000 pupils.

The program gained support from two former Prime Mi-
nisters: Professor Jerzy Buzek and Professor Marek Belka,
who during the 2007 summer holidays took on the role
of volunteers and taught classes for school pupils in se-
veral rural communes. In 2012, in cooperation with the
Chancellery of Polish President Bronistaw Komorowski,
the Modern Patriotism project was carried out as part of
the program where Chancellery Ministers and Advisors
visited schools in small localities. The project was desi-
gned to stimulate discussion about patriotism, shaping
citizen attitudes in young people, introducing them to
national symbols and local traditions, as well as promo-
ting respect and tolerance.

Polish-American Freedom Fou
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Since 2011 the projects carried out by volunteer stu-
dents as part of the program have been regularly mo-
nitored and evaluated. This is meant to both evaluate
direct results of the entire program, and to observe its
long-term influence. The biggest benefits mentioned
by student-volunteers include opportunities to acquire
new, practical experience, develop communication skills,
meet people, and the opportunity for their social acti-
vity to be seen and appreciated by their alma maters.
And, most importantly, the benefits of taking part in the
“PROJECTOR" are emphasized by schools which men-
tion: expanding the educational offer, increasing school
attractiveness, and positive reception of the program
by parents.

Due to the coronavirus pandemic, in 2020 the program
was dominated by online activities. As part of the “Make
the Cut to Online Knowledge” campaign, “PROJECTOR”
volunteers prepared inspiring multimedia educational
materials that were used by pupils, teachers, and pa-
rents. The initiative attracted great interest across so-
cial media. In total, it reached 450,000 people. Another

40,000

educational projects have been carried
out since 2003 in about 2,800 schools
all over Poland; they involved 14,700
student volunteers and 430,000 pupils.

campaign aimed to share student volunteers’ practical
experiences in studying, consisted of 12 webinars atten-
ded by more than 2,600 high school graduates from all
over Poland.

Between 2005 and 2010, the program was carried out
by the Polish Association of Pedagogues and Anima-
tors “Klanza”. Later, until 2017, the program was im-
plemented by the Foundation for the Development of
Voluntary Service.

LEARNING SCHOOLS (LES)

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$13,858,857

in grants, including $883,690 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGER:

» The Center for Citizenship
Education Foundation

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.sus.ceo.org.pl

Comprehensive action to improve Polish education using best international standards has been
carried out under this program since its launch in 2000. The quality of schools improves mostly thanks
to training delivered to teachers and headmasters, in rural areas and small towns in particular.

1 ES" introduces into the daily operation of schools

an original quality assurance system that improves
pupils’ learning outcomes. This is achieved by increasing
the competencies and autonomy of the teaching staff,

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

strengthening the school principal’s position, and impro-
ving teamwork. The program offers online courses for
teachers, workshops for teacher boards, post-graduate
studies and conferences for principals, during which par-



ticipants learn the principles of formative assessment
and other educational practices. “LES” schools develop
ways to perfect teacher performance, monitor results
of performed activities, and share best practices with
each other. The “Learning Schools” Program improves
quality in areas key to school operations, namely: the
effectiveness of teaching and learning, organizing the
functioning of a school as a learning institution, and en-
suring cooperation between the school and its outside
environment.

In the course of 20 years the program gathered some
5,000 schools, of which 3,000 took part in its core
part aimed at comprehensive school development by
introducing formative assessment. 150,000 teachers
participated in training sessions offered by various “LES”
components.

Since the 2017/18 school year, “LES" has been carried out
in new conditions resulting from the far-reaching chan-
ges introduced to the Polish educational system by the
Polish Ministry of Education. The program, adjusted to
the needs imposed by the new reality, continues to be
very popular with teachers and schools all over Poland.

In 2020, due to pandemic restrictions, schools intro-
duced remote learning. The “LES” training and advisory
offer had to switch over to a new method: more than
100,000 teachers participated in online courses, tra-
ining, and webinars focused mostly on methods for deli-
vering remote learning.

For many years, apart from the large-scale training and
workshops, the “Online Teachers Academy” (OTA) has
offered e-courses for teachers of numerous subjects
from all types of schools and kindergartens. These co-
urses prepare teachers for applying modern methods
and techniques in working with pupils. “OTA" offers eight
different types of one-year courses, which attract aro-
und 800 teachers each time. In the past pandemic year
the most popular “OTA” course was “School in the Web”,
a course dedicated to methods of remote learning.

The many years of “LES” experience is used in various
educational initiatives financed from EU funds. These
include: “The Student Academy”, “Digital School”, “The
Learning Schools Academy for Education Leaders’,
or the “School for the Innovator” introduced in 2019.
The purpose of these initiatives is to develop competen-

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

5,000

schools have taken part in the program
over 20 years, almost 3,000 of them parti-
cipated in the core part which is aimed at
comprehensive development of the school.
Training sessions offered as part of various
components of the “LES” Program covered
150,000 teachers.

cies which students will need in adult life, by promoting
innovative teaching and evaluation methods among
teachers and school principals, and by reshaping the or-
ganization of schoolwork. So far, more than 10,000 scho-
ols have taken part in these initiatives.

After a two-year break, the post-graduate studies for
Education Leaders were reopened. Thanks to the expe-
rience from the 2017-2019 European project addressed
to 900 heads and deputy heads of schools and kinder-
gartens from the Mazovia and Swietokrzyskie Provinces,
the current program has been expanded by new con-
tent, forms, and methods of work. The studies are orga-
nized in cooperation with Collegium Civitas. So far, over
500 school principals have taken part.

PAFF is a partner to the “School with Class” initiative
which promotes modern educational solutions among
schools and teachers, using IT and communication
technologies, the design thinking method, and the agile
methodology. In total, it has gathered more than 9,000
schools from all over Poland and around 150,000 te-
achers. It is the continuation of the “School with Class”
campaign initiated in 2002, inspired by “LES” and carried
out by the Center for Citizenship Education Foundation
in cooperation with the “Gazeta Wyborcza” daily. In the
past, the campaign included such initiatives as: “Teacher
with Class”, “Lego, Cogito, Ago”, “Student with Class”, and
“School of Thinking”. In 2020, the entire program was car-
ried out mostly online, with more than 10,000 teachers
taking part in numerous webinars, remote training ses-
sions and meetings.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

PAFF HAS DISBURSED PROGRAM MANAGER: MORE INFORMATION AT:

www.rownacszanse.pl

: The Polish Child dYouth
$16,979,452 fmrereee

in grants, including $1,616,462 in 2020.

The purpose of this program, initiated in 2001, is to support social initiatives aimed at evening out

the opportunities for a good start into adult life for rural and small-town children and youth
by increasing their competencies and developing their social skills, such as teamwork, winning
the support necessary to accomplish set goals, and planning actions.

As part of the program, non-governmental organiza-
tions, cultural centers, libraries, and informal groups
apply for grants for projects that stimulate the aspirations
of children and young people, are conducive to the fulfil-
ment of the realistic goals they set on their own, develop
activeness and openness, and encourage acting for the
benefit of their own communities. The projects enable
young people to participate in classes extending beyond
the standard educational offer of their schools.

In 2020, 125 projects were financed under the Nation-
wide Grant Competition and Regional Grant Compe-
tition. These included initiatives to promote pro-eco-
logical activities, reclaiming public space by the young
(e.g. by painting murals, or taking care of urban green
spaces), broadening the scope of educational and cultu-
ral activities for youth, e.g. by organizing outdoor urban
games or staging theatrical productions.

The program also offers training for project coordina-
tors that increase their qualifications, teach project
management with a focus on engaging youth as active
creators, participants, and direct executors of a given
undertaking. The coordinators are also offered training
in using modern technologies in educational project
management and promotion. The “Equal Opportunities”
Local Forums, scheduled regularly by participating orga-
nizations, constitute an important part of the program.
The Forums offer a space for institutions and individu-
als concerned with various youth-engaging activities in

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

their local environments to discuss how to use the po-
tential of such environments, and to break barriers that
get in the way of development opportunities for young
people from small towns and villages.

The coronavirus pandemic significantly limited availa-
ble options to celebrate the 20th jubilee of the program
in 2020. One part of the jubilee was the special grant
competition which allowed 13 local non-governmental
organizations to arrange program-promoting events in
their communities; these were, for instance, meetings
with participants and coordinators, exhibitions of pic
tures and posters created during the projects, and local
field games to explore places related to the projects car-
ried out under “Equal Opportunities”. The results of the
20 years of program activity was also broadly presented
during social media campaigns.

In two decades of the program 3,200 projects with
ca. 149,000 participants were carried out (indirectly:
nearly 480,000 people), as well as the activation and in-
tegration of local communities to act for the benefit of
children and youth.

The program allows the Foundation to support the Young
Explorer Clubs initiative, which is a continuation of a mo-
del project initiated as part of the program in 2002 by
the Education Society of Ktodzko, now carried out by the
Copernicus Science Center. The purpose of the Young
Explorer Clubs is to attract children and young people to



the sciences. The YEC formula helps young people learn
through experimentation and independent experiments
using simple, easily available materials. Last year, the
international Young Explorer Clubs Forum was held for
the ninth time, this time online owing to the pandemic.
The event gathered over 1,700 people from Armenia,
Georgia, Germany, and Poland. The Forum is a platform
of contact and experience sharing, it also serves to pro-
mote the Clubs. Nearly 800 units belong to the YEC ne-
twork; over 180 operate in Georgia.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3,200

projects have been implemented within
the program engaging approximately
149,000 active participants - indirectly
nearly 480,000 people have been involved.

BRIDGE SCHOLARSHIPS

www.dobrasiec.org

PAFF HAS DISBURSED : PROGRAM MANAGERS: MORE INFORMATION AT:

$2 48 222 > The Educational Enterprise Foundation : www.stypendia-pomostowe.pl
5} 5) * , The Good Network Foundation P www.paiipl

in grants, including $1,143,926 in 2020. : (My Scholarship and “e-wolontariat”)

This program was launched in 2002 to address the crucial issue of the stark disproportion in access

to higher education between young people from rural and urban areas. It was meant to help gifted
youngsters from small towns and villages, from former state farms (PGR) in particular, make the decision
to continue their education at universities by awarding first-year continuity of education scholarships.

I: rom the beginning, “Bridge Scholarships” were a joint
undertaking of many partners. Now they are financed
by the Polish-American Freedom Foundation, the Natio-
nal Bank of Poland, the Rural Development Foundation,
and the BNP Paribas Foundation. Also engaged is a co-
alition of 80 or so local non-governmental organizations.
The program is carried out with organizational help from
the National Support Center for Agriculture (former Agri-
cultural Property Agency), and in cooperation with the
Professor Bronistaw Geremek Center and the Shipyard
Foundation. So far, the Partners have designated more
than PLN 123 million for the execution of the program.
Almost 25,000 scholarships have been granted since the
beginning of the program, including more than 17,000 for
the first year of studies.

The “Diploma of Dreams” campaign, which aims to enco-
urage and support more local non-governmental organi-
zations to take up similar scholarship initiatives aligned
with the “Bridge Scholarships” concept, has resulted in
engaging another 153 NGOs in helping more than 6,500
students since 2006.

After several years, the program transformed into a com-
plex scholarship system, offering much more than an allo-
wance for the first year of studies. Today the scholarship
holders who do well in their academic pursuits have a
chance for assistance in successive years of study - for the
second year they may enter the Top Student competition;
they may apply for corporate scholarships for their third
and fourth years, or a scholarship under the Study Abroad

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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initiative, and doctoral scholarships. Additionally, the pro-
gram offers language scholarships, workshops preparing
scholarship holders for entering the job market and chal-
lenges of the digitalized world, and annual Scientific Start
conferences.

There are also summer internships in the USA organized
in cooperation with the Embassy of the United States in
Warsaw (the Polish-American Internship Initiative - PAII).
Intheyears 2011-2019, 111 students completed internships
in thirteen corporations, such as Boeing, Chevron North
America, Citigroup, GE HitachiNuclear Energy, MoneyGram,
Pittsburgh Glass Works LLC, Raytheon BBN Technologies,
Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, Westinghouse Electric Com-
pany, or Discovery Inc. Additionally, thanks to cooperation
with the Transatlantic Future Leaders Forum, 46 students
did their internships at the United States Congress.

In the past, one of the program segments offered scienti-
fic scholarships to the best performing young people from
small towns and villages who studied economics at non-sta-
te universities and private business schools. Between 2001
and 2014, nearly 7,000 such scholarships were granted.

Surveys conducted among program graduates show that
98% believe their bridge scholarship significantly impro-
ved their financial standing during studies. 90% of scholar-
ship holders achieve good or very good academic results,

70% finish their studies on time, and only 4% discontinued
their studies.

Last year, because of the pandemic situation, all substan-
tial program operations were shifted online, internships
with the Polish-American Internship Initiative were suspen-
ded, and the Scientific Start conference did not take place.

The Bridge Scholarships Program enables PAFF to sup-
port the development of scholarships and volunteer
services carried out by the Good Network Foundation,
which among other things runs the My Scholarship
(www.mojestypendium.pl) website - the largest Polish
website about scholarships.

“Rzeczpospolita”, “Forum Akademickie”, “Perspektywy”
and the dlaStudenta.pl website provide media sponsor-
ship for the program.

25,000

“bridge” scholarships have been awarded
since the beginning of the program,
including over 17,000 scholarships

for the first year of studies.

PAFF AND UW SCHOOL OF EDUCATION

PAFF HAS DISBURSED PROGRAM MANAGER: MORE INFORMATION AT:

www.szkolaedukacji.pl

» The Foundation for Quality
$5,016,023 : Education

in grants, including $1,055,858 in 2020.

School of Education is a joint undertaking of the Polish-American Freedom Foundation and the University
of Warsaw, designed in close cooperation with the renowned Columbia University Teachers College in New
York. This is the only non-remote full-time post-graduate course in Poland granting teaching certificates.

16 Polish-American Freedom Foundation



At present, the course is provided free of charge. At
the same time SE students may apply for a scholar-
ship to help cover the costs of living and for a place in a
UW dormitory.

The fifth round (the 2020/21 academic year) is attended
by 38 students following one of the four education pa-
ths: Polish studies, mathematics, history and civic educa-
tion, as well as biology and natural studies. Additionally,
17 students are on the psychological and pedagogical
education path carried out in cooperation with the UW
Faculty of Biology.

Daily school teaching practice is an integral part of te-
acher training at the School of Education. Students
spend time in both academic classes and a school clas-
sroom. They observe lessons, co-teach, and teach, take
part in meetings of teacher boards and parent-teacher
conferences. The experience accrued at schools are
then regularly discussed during academic classes. The
School of Education takes responsibility for the quality
of in-school apprenticeships by closely cooperating with
thoroughly selected schools in Warsaw and its vicinity.
Almost 200 teachers from the cooperating schools parti-
cipate in workshops and consultation meetings held for
SE students.

Each student has her/his own individual tutor from Scho-
ol of Education. Academic classes are held in small gro-
ups. Focus is set on discussion and systematic analysis
of student progress. SE faculty is made up of people
with school experience, actively involved in the area of
education, and having different perspectives: in-service
teachers, academics, and other people with a passion
for education. The School of Education employs lectu-
rers from many academic centers, trained by renowned
American and European specialists in teacher education.

The PAFF and UW School of Education has its own Alumni
Office which offers long-term support for more than 100
former SE students, also helping them find a job in their
profession. The alumni cooperate with SE lecturers on
an ongoing basis, regularly perfecting their methods and
sharing teaching experiences. Education facilities hiring
the alumni may take part in the rich training offer of the
School of Education.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

Since 2017, the School has added to its offer professio-
nal development for in-service teachers in teaching lite-
rature and Polish, mathematics, biology, history, as well
as didactic and communication competencies. In the
2020/21 academic year the courses are attended by aro-
und 100 people.

Since March 2020 most academic courses, school ap-
prenticeships, professional development courses, and
educational events have been conducted online. The SE
faculty modified the teaching curriculum to conform to
the special conditions caused by the COVID pandemic.

Good practices developed in School of Education are
popularized not only in schools but also in institutions
for teacher education and professional development.
In 2020 alone, with the pandemic restricting available
options, various SE conferences, training sessions, and
workshops attracted more than 2,000 people. During
these meetings the participants could learn about me-
thods and tools used by the School in teaching students.
At the same time more than 10,000 teachers from all
over Poland took part in special online classes on me-
thods of remote teaching.

On behalf of PAFF, the Foundation for Quality Education,
established by PAFF in 2014, is responsible for the ma-
nagement and development of the School of Education.
SE is situated in the UW Center of New Technologies
(CENT) in Warsaw.

2,000

people attended in 2020 in various online
meetings (conferences, training sessions,
workshops) where methods and tools used
by the School of Education in their work
with students were presented.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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Initiatives in Education

THIRD AGE UNIVERSITIES (TAU)

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$5,493,221

Initiatives “e”

in grants, including $236,480 in 2020.

Polish-American
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PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The Association of Creative

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.seniorzywakgji.pl

The program, initiated in 2005, aims to promote educational actions that encourage older people
to become more active, with emphasis placed on their social activity, and inter-generational
relations in particular. The program is carried out mainly by supporting and promoting initiatives
taken by seniors themselves, who use their potential, knowledge, experience, and time for

the benefit of their own environment and local communities, and by supporting the operations
of the Third Age Universities.

he “Seniors in Action” competition offers grants and

training for people over 60 who wish to carry out
social initiatives based on their own ideas, individually
or in tandem with a younger person. The competition
is addressed to active seniors enrolled into a Third Age
University, as well as those cooperating with other orga-
nizations and institutions.

So far, 398 projects have been financed in the thirteen
editions of the “Seniors in Action” competition: inter-ge-
nerational projects, projects that encourage older pe-
ople to act for the benefit of their community, and pro-
jects promoting volunteer services by the seniors.

To support Third Age Universities, the program offers
training, workshops, and experience exchange during
conferences for TAU representatives. In 2004-2012, the
nation-wide TAU meetings were held in Cracow, Byd-
goszcz, Stupsk, Ptock, Warsaw, Nowy Sgcz, and Katowice.
Between 2011 and 2013, 14 regional TAU meetings were
granted support. The program is also engaged in other
events important to the TAU movement, in particular the
annual Third Age Forum, which is a part of the Internatio-
nal Economic Forum in Krynica.

om Foundation

Since 2013, representatives of Third Age Universities
may participate in TAU for Local Communities work-
shops which encourage the formation of volunteer gro-
ups at the Universities, as well as cooperation with local
communities. Seven editions of this project gathered 70
TAUs; the present eighth edition includes 12 more.

2020 was the last year of the pilot program “Tandem.
Mentoring 55+" focused on engaging older people in
mentoring children and youth living in environments
requiring support. About a dozen mentors cooperated
with their protégés to boost their self-esteem and social
competencies. The result was the publication “Tandem.
How to Provide Inter-generational Mentoring”, a step-
-by-step compendium for institutions and organizations
interested in such actions among children and teenagers
(available for free on the website of the Program Mana-
ger). The partners of the pilot program were: the Elzbie-
ta Sottys Education and Kindergarten Complex “School
with Passion” in Ostrowiec Swietokrzyski and Joanna Ra-
dziwitt's Foundation Caring Wings in Warsaw.

Additionally, from 2005 to 2008 under the grant compe-
tition addressed directly to the Third Age Universities,



131 grants were awarded for projects improving the qu-
ality of their educational offers, including computer and
Internet courses enabling Third Age Universities to reach
a wider audience of senior citizens, as well as stimulating
seniors’ involvement in activities for the benefit of their
local communities, particularly through voluntary work.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

400

intergenerational projects stimulating
seniors to act for the benefit of their
communities and promoting their voluntary
work have been carried out under the
program.




Development of Local Communities

> SUPPORT FOR NGOS

2020 RELIEF FUND FOR NON-GOVERNMENTAL
ORGANIZATIONS AND CIVIC INITIATIVES




PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$14,637,000

in grants, including $685,225 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGERS:
The Klon/Jawor Association

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

MORE INFORMATION AT:

The Civil Society Development
Foundation (,FIMANGQO")

The Academy of Civic Organizations
Foundation (,PROMENGQ")

The purpose of the program is to support non-governmental organizations and community leaders
in Poland, especially in small towns and villages, by providing them with information, guidance,
and training. This improves management quality in third-sector organizations and strengthens
their potential, leading to better efficiency and improved effectiveness of social undertakings.

The program operates along three paths.

The first, “Mutual Information Society” (MIS@NGO), is
an information system for civil society organizations,
the main component of which is the Non-governmental
Organizations Portal ngo.pl - the largest Polish portal
about civil society, recognized by almost 80% of NGOs
in Poland. Visited annually by more than 4 million users,
its database contains information about nearly 180,000
Polish non-governmental organizations. The system
also includes the Informatory and Helpline 801-646-719
(around 5,000 consultations a year), as well as research
and publications.

The second path, "EURO-NGO+", aims to increase NGO
capacity of acquiring EU funds. This is the continuation
of the 2003-2006 PAFF “EURO-NGO” program which
helped Polish non-governmental organizations obtain
knowledge about structural funds and raise their com-
petencies, thus enabling them to apply for EU grants with
greater effectiveness. NGOs were granted support in bu-
ilding partnerships, advocacy, and participating in plan-
ning structural funds for 2007-2013 and then 2014-2020.
In this respect, the National Federation of Polish NGOs
(OFOP) is responsible for information and advocacy.

The third path, “NGO Training”, consists of two parts.
The first, “Financial Management for NGOs" (FIMANGO),
consists in providing training, guidance, and publica-
tions to persons responsible for financial management in
non-profit organizations, mostly those operating outside
major metropolitan areas. In total, nearly 5,500 represen-
tatives from almost 3,500 organizations from across Po-
land participated in such trainings in the years 2000-2020.
Training efforts were carried out by the Civil Society Deve-
lopment Foundation. Last year, due to the pandemic, the
bulk of training activity was performed online.

The second part, launched in 2013, is a comprehensive
educational offer for NGO managers, consisting of the

9,500

people representing 3,500 organizations
from all over Poland took advantage of
training opportunities under the “Financial
Management for NGOs” initiative during
the period 2000-2020.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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“PROMENGO" training program, the “Kursodrom” e-le-
arning platform that has been used already by 6,300
users, and workshops in NGO management whose most
important element is the Fundraising Education Pro-
gram addressed to people who are focused on obtaining
funds for non-profit organizations. The Third Sector qu-
arterly completes the offer. It is a scientific publication
wholly dedicated to research and analysis of issues per-
tinent to the development of NGOs in Poland. This part is
executed by the Academy of Civic Organizations Founda-
tion created by PAFF.

Additionally, PAFF co-organizes the annual nation-wide
meetings of rural civic organizations in Mar6z under this

ACT LOCALLY

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$17,582,792

in grants, including $695,203 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The Academy for the Development
of Philanthropy in Poland

program. Each such event, aimed at integration, expe-
rience exchange, cooperation, acquiring knowledge and
skills, is attended by more than 300 representatives of
nearly 160 organizations from all over Poland. The me-
etings are organized by the Rural Development Foun-
dation and the “Nida" Development Foundation. Due to
the coronavirus pandemic, in 2020 the meeting in Maréz
was not held.

PAFF also supports regular research on the condition
of the third sector in Poland.

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.dzialajlokalnie.pl

The purpose of this program, launched in 2000, is to support and activate local communities in rural
areas and small towns through civic projects meant to encourage development and increase the
quality of life, at the same time building social capital. The program offers support for active local
communities whose members define their needs themselves and take collective action.

ach community is made of various people, with dif-
ferent needs, resources, traditions, and experiences.
Thatis why “Act Locally” supports distinctly varied projects.

Grants are awarded in open grant competitions organi-
zed once a year on a local level by the network of Act
Locally Centers (ALCs) which encompasses associations
and foundations operating in localities with up to 50,000
people, and covering areas whose size ranges from four

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

rural communes to several counties. The ALC network
is gradually growing. It began with 15 ALCs in 2004, and
now includes 77 organizations and is present in nearly
660 communes. There are at least two Act Locally Cen-
ters in every Polish province. They cooperate with other
non-governmental organizations, as well as local autho-
rities and entrepreneurs. New ALCs are appointed by the
Competition Committee in an open recruitment proce-
dure. The beneficiaries of local competitions are non-



-governmental organizations as well as informal citizen
groups that may apply through public organizations and
institutions (schools, cultural centers, libraries) in small
towns and villages of less than 20,000 inhabitants.

So far, more than 12,000 projects have engaged nearly
4 million participants, including some 220,000 volun-
teers. The 11th edition of the program was launched in
January 2019 and has delivered support to more than
1,800 local projects.

Funded initiatives focus on culture and tradition, edu-
cation, health, ecology, sport, creating new opportuni-
ties for personal development and spending free time,
tourism, and improving the attractiveness of the region,
as well as fighting social exclusion. Their common deno-
minator is local activity, which allows the population to
learn new skills, better organize themselves, and react to
emerging problems.

The “Tell Me..." competition is organized for the mana-
gers of supported initiatives; it awards the most intere-
sting forms of communicating and promoting the actions
taken. Winning works from all competition editions can
be viewed on the program website. For several years the-
re has also been another competition awarding the most
creative ideas on how to carry out a campaign to donate
1% of income tax to an NGO with public charity status.

The quality of Act Locally Centers work is improved
with trainings, workshops, regional meetings, study to-
urs, and webinars which enable the exchange of good
practices, acquiring knowledge and competencies, and
increase cooperation within the ALC network. Act Locally
Centers use their “"Act Locally” experience to engage in
other PAFF efforts, such as "PAFF Local Partnerships”,
where they lead coalitions of participants involved in
different PAFF programs formed to execute social pro-
jects that meet the needs of their communities. “PAFF
Leaders” is also one such program where ALC repre-
sentatives take on the role of both leaders and tutors.
In “Sector 3.0", ALC representatives co-create the Mobi-
le Advisers Network supporting other organizations in
their using of ICT.

The “FIMANGO" Local Advisers School has been opera-
ting since 2016. This initiative utilizes resources of the
PAFF programs “Act Locally” and “Financial Management
for NGOs"” (FIMANGO). It is an intense training program
which raises competencies of ALC representatives in fi-
nancial management counselling for smaller local organi-
zations they work with. So far, the program has been com-
pleted by 41 representatives of 27 Act Locally Centers.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

In 2020, funds from grant competitions were transferred
to initiatives counteracting the negative effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The projects included intervention
actions, helping senior and disabled people, those un-
dergoing quarantine, providing psychological help and
counselling, as well as supporting remote education.
A special institutionalized relief fund was initiated for
Act Locally Centers that found themselves in a difficult
situation due to the pandemic - so far it has benefited
31 ALCs. The same number have accepted support as
part of the “Relief Fund for Non-governmental Organiza-
tions and Civil Initiatives” created by PAFF. In total, Act Lo-
cally Centers received PLN 650,000 of financial support.

Actions were also taken to transfer the “Act Locally” pro-
gram experience to Ukraine and inspire Ukrainian non-
-governmental organizations to create a network model-
led after Act Locally Centers as part of the "Act Locally
in Ukraine” action carried out by the Academy for the
Development of Philanthropy in Poland in cooperation
with the ISAR Ednannia Foundation in Ukraine.

As part of “Act Locally”, PAFF also participates in various
undertakings that serve the development and promo-
tion of social philanthropy. The Foundation supports the
“Benefactor of the Year” competition and holds patro-
nage over its “Local Development” category promoting
social activity of businesses which, together with Act Lo-
cally Centers, help introduce permanent changes in local
communities. The Foundation is also the main partner of
the “Civic Leader of the Year” organized by the Newsweek
Polska weekly (with the Academy for the Development of
Philanthropy in Poland as its expert partner), the purpo-
se of which is to award civic attitudes and promote civic
activity of individuals and organizations backing them in
solving various social problems. As part of the Program,
the Foundation also supports the “Charity Stars” com-
petition organized by the Academy, which awards public
figures for their charitable activities.

4,000,000

participants, including about 220,000
volunteers, have been involved in the
implementation of nearly 12,000 local
projects. The common denominator

of the projects has been local involvement.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

23



24

o®o 21ST YEAR OF OPERATION

PAFF HAS DISBURSED : PROGRAM MANAGER:
: The Information Society
$3,494, 239 : Development Foundation

in grants, including $495,450 in 2020.

MORE INFORMATION AT:

This program, launched in 2012 (previously under the name “ICT for Local Development”),

is a continuation of earlier actions implemented by PAFF

to support the use of modern information

and communication technologies in local development and civic activity. Its purpose is to broaden
the knowledge and increase the skills of NGO activists and employees, in small towns and villages
in particular, in terms of effective ICT use in daily work, thus increasing the range and

effectiveness of their actions.

he actual program was preceded by an analysis

conducted by the Shipyard Foundation, as well as
consultations with Polish and international experts.
Information was gathered and published about the ad-
vancement of non-governmental organizations in uti-
lizing digital tools, including adequate knowledge and
competencies of their staff.

Under the program, thematic training for NGOs was car-
ried out showing examples of effective use of modern
technologies in communication, marketing, and mana-
gement. Some of the NGOs received grants to buy har-
dware and software, and to carry out projects aimed at
practical use of ICT in the third sector. The program offer
also includes a Mobile ICT Advisors’ Network, currently
consisting of 80 experts who provide free training and
technological support for local non-governmental or-
ganizations. So far, the Mobile Advisers gave over 7,500
pieces of advice, and almost 15,000 NGO representati-
ves from across Poland benefited from their help. Last
year, because of the pandemic, Mobile Advisers focused
mainly on supporting civil organizations in performing
their tasks online.

The offer of the program also includes the means to sup-
port creating new ICT tools that could then be used by

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

non-profit organizations. In 2020, the “Sector 3.0 Fund
supported two projects. The first one, “Patients for Pa-
tients”, carried out by the People and Medicine Founda-
tion, obtained PLN 30,000 to create an application that
would offer mentorship in illness; it is addressed to pe-
ople with chronic diseases. The “Find: Inductive Loop”
project of the Culture Without Barriers Foundation has
received a grant of PLN 20,000 to create a data base of
places and events where an inductive loop is available;
where people with hearing loss can take fuller part in
social life.

Particular emphasis is placed on providing knowledge
that enables the identification of potential areas where
ICT could be used in non-governmental organizations.
A network of TechClubs was created for this purpose in
16 cities in Poland. The clubs hold regular meetings (on-
line in 2020) for representatives of NGOs, businesses,
local governments, and academia with the aim of sharing
experiences related to the use of modern digital tools.
Since 2012, TechClubs succeeded in attracting around
18,000 people.

Annual international conferences, “Sector 3.0" Festivals,
play an important role in the program. These events at-
tract representatives from non-governmental organiza-



tions, business ICT experts, politicians, scientists, and
foreign experts (i.a. from the USA, the UK, South Korea,
Israel, and India). They offer a platform to share informa-
tion about modern trends in how to utilize ICTs for social
actions. Between 2012 and 2019, the nine editions of the
“Sector 3.0" conference held in Warsaw attracted 4,550
people. In 2020, the Festival was organized fully online
for the first time. It reached 3.3 million Internet users,
including 400,000 live viewings through the Onet.pl por-
tal, and more than 1,300 people participated in events
organized through the Hopin platform and social media.

PAFF LEADERS

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$5,592,657

in grants, including $423,625 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The School for Leaders Foundation

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3,300,000

Internet users participated in the 2020
“Sector 3.0” Festival, which was held
online for the first time.

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.liderzy.pl

The objective of this program, implemented by the School for Leaders Foundation, is to support

the development of skills and qualifications of individuals working for the benefit of their local
communities. This is achieved mainly through the tutorial method consisting in regular cooperation

between an experienced tutor and a local leader.

he program is addressed to active participants of

projects funded from various programs carried out
by the Polish-American Freedom Foundation, in par-
ticular by “Act Locally”, “Equal Opportunities”, “English
Teaching”, “Region in Transition” (RITA), “PAFF Local Part-
nerships”, and the Library Development Program.

The main part of the program is the 12-month leader-tu-
tor cooperation and the training cycle adjusted to user
needs and priorities, consisting of planning their own
development, team building, organization management,
communication, engaging the community, and building
a local partnership. Skills acquired during the program
help leaders act for the benefit of local communities.

An important part of the program, the offer addressed
to the graduates - the "Alumni” initiative - provides an
opportunity for cooperation and experience exchan-
ge. It enables the participants to meet with well-known
public figures, take part in workshops that meet their
needs, and access funds from graduate initiatives to
carry out leader projects. Thanks to the e-newsletter
subscription, the alumni regularly receive news about
current program actions. The experience exchange be-
tween leaders is also possible during annual meetings
and through the social media. A special group of pro-
gram participants and alumni are those who are active
in local governments. In the local government elec
tions of the autumn of 2018, 184 of them ran; 83 were

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$2,883,205

in grants, including $261,350 in 2020.

Development of Local Communities

elected mayor or member of a commune, municipality,
or town council.

Since 2008, study visits to the USA for PAFF leaders have
been organized as part of the International Visitor Le-
adership Program implemented with the U.S. Embassy
in Poland. Each year, a group of 10 leaders and tutors
takes partin the program. The visit planned for 2020 was
cancelled due to the pandemic.

Pandemic restrictions forced most of last year's program
meetings to be held online. PAFF Leaders participated in
about a dozen meetings where public figures discussed
such issues as carrying out civic actions during the pan-
demic and in times of social isolation. These meetings
were attended by 350 people.

The program'’s fifteen editions held to date have resul-
ted in raising the qualifications of more than 700 local

PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The Academy for the Development
of Philanthropy in Poland

706

local leaders from all over Poland
improved their qualifications, and they
have established an active nationwide
network. Also, 67 tutoring experts have
been trained.

leaders from across Poland and creating their active
nation-wide network, as well as educating 67 experts in
employing the tutoring method. This sixteenth edition of
the program, which ends in June 2021, is attended by 46
leaders and 14 tutors. Recruitment for the seventeenth
edition begins in February 2021.

PAFF LOCAL PARTNERSHIPS

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.lokalnepartnerstwa.org.pl

The objective of the program is to initiate and develop cooperation among participants

of various PAFF programs to promote setting up partnerships capable of implementing
social projects important to entire local communities. The program uses the local community
civic activation method to build common good on the basis of a social needs diagnosis.

hanks to the diversified PAFF programmatic offer,
many local communities in Poland have carried out
projects which have created opportunities for gaining
experience and building resources that enable unle-
ashing additional civic energy. The “PAFF Local Partner-

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

ships” Program offers participants of these projects the
possibility of building joint partnership initiatives using
the accumulated potential for work benefiting their lo-
cal communities. At the same time, this contributes to
strengthening local social capital through a synergy of



experiences and results of various initiatives. Partner-
ships primarily composed of participants of several PAFF
programs, who constitute an Initiative Group within
each coalition, are established. They are joined by local
governments, businesses, the local media, and non-go-
vernmental organizations and institutions that have not
participated in any PAFF programs before. Organizations
participating in one of the following PAFF programs can
become partnership leaders: “Act Locally”, "English Te-
aching”, "Equal Opportunities”, “The Learning Schools”
(LES), “PAFF Leaders”, the Library Development Program,
“Region in Transition” (RITA), and “Third Age Universities”
(TAU). Many local residents and volunteers are engaged
in the execution of the projects.

In the seven editions held to date since 2009, 50 PAFF Lo-
cal Partnerships and 11 partner start-ups have been for-
med, reaching 107 communes and engaging 900 partners.

Thanks to the partner projects it was possible to amend
existing legal regulations and reduce air pollution in Zy-
wiec, open a local online citizen television in Grodzisk
Mazowiecki, develop a public park in Bitgoraj, and open
a county volunteer center in Debica. The projects also
resulted in the promotion of local products - a “Route of
the Carp” was created in the Barycz River Valley, and an
“Apple Route” was outlined near Warka. The program led
to the establishment of the Network of Youth-Friendly
Places in the Podkarpacie region, and the formation of
the “Volcano” Activity Center in Ztotoryja. These projects
focus on actions engaging young people. Niemce wit-
nessed the creation of a Youth Forest Guard which now
protects the purity and beauty of the Koztowiecki Forest
and promotes pro-ecological attitudes. Under the 6th
edition of the program, completed in December 2019,
the engagement of partners and local residents resul-
ted in restoring Poland'’s first, though shut-down at the
time, locomotive factory Fablok SA as the showpiece of
Chrzanéw. In Krotoszyn, a neglected park situated next
to the public library is now teeming with life. Three grants
for smaller start-up projects were also awarded in this
edition. As a result, a local TV station was established
in Miedzyrzecze, whilst Niepotomice inhabitants integra-
ted to act for reinvigorating the Niepotomice Forest they
had before been neglecting.

In the 7th edition, launched in January 2020, five part-
nerships and four start-ups were formed. Additionally,
as a pilot program, four start-up grants were awarded
for actions aiming to expand the local offer of informal
education, create thematic villages, maintain natural he-

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

ritage, as well as build inter-generational relations and
multiculturalism in the region. All of them also intend to
counteract the negative effects of the pandemic.

Additional financial support offered by PAFF enables lo-
cal partnerships to continue already launched actions
and motivates them to prepare strategies to sustain re-
sults of the implemented activities. The program promo-
tes the local community activation method developed
together with the Shipyard Foundation. It was presen-
ted in the publication titled “How to Build the Common
Good? A Handbook for Local Activists” (“Jak budowac
dobro wspélne? poradnik dla dziatajgcych lokalnie”. The
subsequent 2015 publication “How to Build Partnerships
Locally?” ("Jak lokalnie budowa¢ partnerstwa?”) includes
articles by experts on issues crucial in creating coalitions
and ensuring their durability, illustrated with examples
from implemented projects. Regular regional meetings,
seminars, and the program e-bulletin co-created by
partnership members help enhance the sustainability of
the partnerships and enable experience sharing. During
the pandemic, the majority of such actions was carried
out online.

Another program component - the Common Good Lab
- is addressed to program alumni. The objective of this
initiative is to popularize cooperation of local communi-
ties working for the common good, promoting methods
of local communities’ animation and enhancing the
sustainability of existing partnerships. The initiative of-
fers expert support and access to a database of mate-
rials, as well as regular alumni gatherings, training ses-
sions, and webinars. The most active participants form
the Civic Activists’ Community, which works to improve
the animation method and to develop tools to mobilize
local communities. They also support creating new part-
nerships in locations that have not yet been covered by
the program.

PAFF Local Partnerships and
11 partnership start-ups were set up
in 7 rounds of the program. They cover

107 communes and municipalities and
involve 900 partners.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$5,582,045

PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The Information Society
Development Foundation

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.biblioteki.org

28

in grants, including $133,143 in 2020.

The program was addressed to public libraries and their branches in rural communes, rural-
and-municipal communes, and towns of up to 20,000 residents. Its main purpose was to support
the transformation of libraries into modern, multi-functional centers that provide access to
information, culture, and education, and at the same time stimulate civic activity. Nearly

4,000 libraries received support. This helped improve the quality of life of small-town and
village populations. An important part of the program was to increase the competencies

of librarians and strengthen the prestige of their profession.

B etween 2008 and 2015, the program was carried
within the partnership of the Polish-American
Freedom Foundation and the Bill and Melinda Gates
Foundation. It was part of a broader initiative of the
Gates Foundation, “Global Libraries”, covering about
a dozen countries. The Information Society Development
Foundation, established by PAFF in 2008, performed the
role of manager from the outset of the Library Develop-
ment Program. The Gates Foundation entrusted PAFF
with a $31 million grant for the program.

As many as 3,808 public libraries from 1,256 commu-
nes (nearly 60% of the target group) were involved in
the program, recruited in three rounds between 2009
and 2015. Participants received support in the form of
counselling and training (10,000 librarians), technolo-
gical support through modern hardware (nearly 10,000
devices: PCs, laptops, tablets, multifunctional devices, prin-
ters, multimedia projectors, and digital cameras). Addi-
tionally, libraries received software worth $18 million pro-
vided free of charge by the Microsoft - including libraries
that did not participate in the program. Libraries could
also apply for grants to finance the activities they listed

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

in their library development plans, which enabled them
to expand their offers, for instance, with computer skills
courses, Internet courses, meetings with interesting
people, or exhibitions. They could also receive funds
to organize meetings between cooperating libraries to
integrate the community of librarians and share expe-
riences.

The program was supported by the National Partnership
for Library Development, consisting of almost a hundred
representatives of science, arts, economy, media, poli-
tics, and the non-governmental sector. Additionally, re-
gional agreements were signed with the authorities of
all 16 provinces in Poland to promote the public library
modernization in villages and small towns. Local partner-
ships were also created for the purpose of developing
libraries in more than 300 communes.

The Library Development Program helped launch many
initiatives to support the entire library system. In 2008,
PAFF signed a cooperation agreement with the Mini-
stry of Culture and National Heritage, which initiated
the multiannual “Library+" program carried out by the



Polish Book Institute. The objectives of both initiatives
were similar - the Foundation and the Ministry were
shaping their activities in such a way that these could
reinforce and complement each other. In 2009, the Mi-
nistry of Culture and National Heritage, the Ministry of
Administration and Digitalization, the Information Socie-
ty Development Foundation, and Orange Polska signed
an agreement regarding the digitalization of public libra-
ries, as part of which Orange Polska provided all libra-
ries in the country with free Internet access until 2015.
Therewerealsojointactions carried out with the National
Library, provincial public libraries, and the Association
of Polish Librarians. Initiatives for the benefit of libraries
wishing to extend their offers to local communities resul-
ted in engaging other non-governmental organizations
including: the Center for Citizenship Education Founda-
tion, the KARTA Center Foundation, the Comenius Foun-
dation for Children Development, and the Association
of Creative Initiatives “e”".

In 2012, the Information Society Development Founda-
tion received the 2012 E-Inclusion Award for the Library
Development Program from the European Commission
in a competition that promotes best practices in using
modern information and communication technologies
and preventing digital exclusion.

Since 2016, libraries in rural areas and small towns have
been further supported as part of the strategy to perpe-
tuate the effects of the main phase of the Library Deve-
lopment Program. The purpose is the consolidation of
changes in the functioning of libraries, so as to increase
their influence on local community development, to fur-
ther propagate modern technologies to the largest po-
ssible extent providing the population with access to in-
formation, knowledge, culture, and education, including
the ability to use digital media in a critical manner, and
to stimulate pro-social activity. The program enhances
the position of libraries as institutions offering social
counselling in various forms and engaging residents in
solving problems important for their communities. To
strengthen the institutional potential of libraries, the
program continues developing librarian competencies
and building their prestige.
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Actions taken as part of the program currently include
training and e-learning courses for library employees
and their local partners, grants for technological expan-
sion of selected libraries, support in their networking
and cooperation for the benefit of local community, as
well as creation and development of innovation incuba-
tors based on library infrastructure. The LABIB initia-
tive has been developed as well, which is a network of
librarian-innovators using the LABIB.pl social portal to
popularize best practices in activities held at libraries.
Program actions also respond to the pandemicrelated
needs of libraries. Among others, libraries drafted opti-
mal development plans adjusted to the new conditions.
In those plans, they involved on-site, on-line, and hybrid
operation models.

January 2021 saw the launch of the 4th round of the
Library Development Program financed by the Polish-
-American Freedom Foundation. Apart from benefiting
the 4,000 libraries involved so far, the program will also
support another 75 libraries with their branches (ca.
300 libraries in total) in towns and villages of up to 50,000
residents, recruited in an open competition planned
for March. The comprehensive offer includes training
and counselling, hardware, as well as support in prepa-
ring plans for developing the services offered to local
residents so as to respond to the diagnosed needs.

3,808

libraries from all over Poland benefited
from the offer of the program. Raising
librarians’ competencies and building

the prestige of their profession constituted
an important component of the program.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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Development of Local Communities

PRO PUBLICO BONO

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$2,516,349

in grants, including $3,028 in 2020.

(2000-2014)

-

WOSEL WYTWAN FRITSILOMINT

LLLL TIRPETT

PROGRAM MANAGERS:
» The “Pro Publico Bono” Competition Foundation

» The Local Press Association

The competition for the Best Civil Initiative “Pro Publico Bono” was initiated in 1999 by then
Prime Minister Jerzy Buzek. The Polish-American Freedom Foundation has funded the Competition

awards since 2000.

he objective of the Competition was to support de-

velopment of civil society by annually selecting and
promoting the most valuable and creative NGO activi-
ties - on a national, regional, and especially local com-
munity level. The Competition looked at actions taken
in the fields of education, culture and national heritage,
healthcare, social assistance and charity, environment
and regional development, as well as social diplomacy
and European integration.

When considering an initiative submitted for the com-
petition, the Competition Chapter (Jury), whose first ho-
norary chairman was Jan Nowak-Jezioranskit, took into
account the social importance of the initiative, its inno-
vativeness, its impact on development and competitive-
ness of local communities, as well as the effectiveness
and transparency of using public funds. Additionally, the
Chapter took into account the institutional stability of
a given organization, its adherence to ethical methods in
its actions, and the quality of the cooperation with the
public administration and other institutions. Competi-
tion winners received financial awards that most often
were used for continuation of their activities.

In 2007 the Bolestaw Wierzbianski Award for the edito-
rial staff of local press was established and PAFF took
on the role of founder. Until 2011, the Award was gran-
ted by the Polish Journalists Association. At present, it
is awarded by the Local Press Association. The 2020

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

Bolestaw Wierzbianski Award went to the editorial staff
of “Gazeta Powiatowa - Wiadomosci Otawskie (The Ota-
wa County News)".

As part of the program, the Foundation also supports
the Civic Congress organized annually by the Institute
for Market Economics. Former Congress editions were
attended by winners of the Pro Publico Bono Competi-
tion. This event, held since 2005, is a unique method for
engaging citizens in a discussion about the directions of
Poland’'s development, the condition of the society, and
the common good. This way it helps stimulate and re-
inforce the civil society. The Congress is an open event
which each time attracts nearly a thousand participants,
including representatives of central and local administra-
tion, non-governmental organizations, scientific groups,

1,100

participants took part in the 15th Civic
Congress, which was held online in 2020.
The theme of this year’s event was

L What Kind Of Poland In The Face

Of The Challenges Of The Future”.



business, student organizations, and local communities.
Apart from the issues directly related to the theme of
a given Congress, the discussion approaches questions
concerning the development of local government in Po-
land. Additionally, the Congress offers an opportunity to
present PAFF's experience in stimulating and supporting
local communities.

The 15th Civic Congress, organized in 2020 under the
motto “What Should Poland be Like In The Face of Fu-

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

PROGRAM MANAGER:
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ture Challenges?”, was held online due to pandemic re-
strictions. It was attended by 1,100 participants. A new
feature in the Congress offer are interactive newsletters
(“thinkletters”) entitled “Ideas for Poland”, which create
a space for discussion about important topics concer-
ning Poland’s national and regional development.

MORE INFORMATION AT:

The Education for Democracy

$844,807 Foundation

in grants.

In April 2020, the Polish-American Freedom Foundation launched a new program: “The Relief
Fund” to support non-governmental organizations and civic initiatives during the pandemic.

The Foundation appropriated $1 million for this purpose.

I: or two decades, PAFF has used its programs to ac-
tively support non-governmental organizations,
schools, libraries, Third Age Universities, as well as local
leaders and citizen groups. When the pandemic began
it became particularly important for the Foundation to
secure the continuity of pending activities and to provide
aid to the non-governmental organizations involved to
preserve their achievements.

For this purpose, in April 2020 PAFF established the “Re-
lief Fund for Non-governmental Organizations and Civic
Initiatives” and embarked on supporting NGOs involved

in PAFF programs in their responses to the crisis. At the
same time PAFF offered help in designing and implemen-
ting actions aimed at minimizing the long-term effects of
the pandemic.

This program provided the necessary financial support to
adjust to the pandemic circumstances. Aid was delivered
to NGOs participating in PAFF programs - their Program
Managers, regional and local NGOs cooperating with the
Program Managers (Act Locally Centers and organizers
of “Study Tours to Poland” for university students), and
PAFF program participants (local NGOs, schools, Third Age

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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Universities, informal groups, e.g. youth groups), as well
as social organizations that had not cooperated with the
Foundation, but whose operations matched the Foun-
dation’s mission. PAFF allocated relief funds to initiate
new initiatives, launch expanded projects, and instigate
intervention procedures. Another offer was institutional
support. It consisted of financing the necessary admini-
strative and payroll costs.

By the end of 2020, PAFF had awarded grants for institu-
tional needs and programmatic operations to 9 nation-
-wide organizations (PLN 70,000 each), 6 organizations
acting as managers of individual PAFF program com-
ponents (PLN 30,000 each), 36 Act Locally Centers and
“STP" Coordinators (PLN 10,000 each, on average), as
well as 43 organizations participating in PAFF programs
(PLN 33,000 each, on average).

Apart from institutional support to purchase IT equip-
ment, provide additional funding for data management
systems, online platforms, and employee training in re-
mote work, the “Relief Fund” also supported the follo-
wing, among others: research on the situation of non-go-
vernmental organizations (the Klon/Jawor Association)
and the mental health of schoolchildren during the pan-
demic (the School with Class Foundation), a webinar and
training cycle for teachers and school principals on or-

ganizing remote school work (the Center for Citizenship
Education Foundation), webinars for independent local
press publishers concerning fundraising (the Local Press
Association), campaigns promoting e-volunteering (the
Good Network Foundation), as well as educational pro-
jects for children and youth, personal development and
preventive programs, and stimulating schoolchildren to
take up actions for the benefit of the local community.

The activities supported by PAFF were carried out from
April 2020 to June 2021.

USD 1,000,000

earmarked the Polish-American Freedom
Foundation in 2020 for implementation
of the “2020 Relief Fund for NGOs and
Civic Initiatives”.
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Sharing the Polish Experiences in Transformation

LANE KIRKLAND SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$15,350,370

in grants, including $888,340 in 2020.

| 3 r"‘.;

PROGRAM MANAGER:
> The Leaders of Change Foundation

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.kirkland.edu.pl

The objective of this program, launched in 2000, is to share the Polish experiences in transformation
and European integration with representatives of Eastern European countries, the South Caucasus,
and Central Asia by offering two-semester complementary courses at Polish universities. The program
is currently addressed to candidates from Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Georgia, Kazakhstan,
Kyrgyzstan, Moldova, Russia, Tajikistan, Ukraine, and Uzbekistan.

n the course of their individual programs, the scholar-

ship holders study selected aspects of economics and
management, public administration and business, law,
social and political sciences, journalism, NGO manage-
ment, or culture management.

The scholarship begins with a preparatory course, which
aims to present and systematize knowledge about Po-
land’s history and the current socio-political situation.
Scholarship holders then go on to attend their individu-
al programs at universities in Warsaw, Cracow, Poznan,
Wroctaw, and Lublin, where they write semester and di-
ploma papers under the tutelage of their academic su-
pervisors. Integration and knowledge-sharing meetings
are organized for the scholarship holders, as well as
internships in State, non-governmental, and private in-
stitutions (e.g. the Supreme Court, the National Bank of
Poland, or regional marshal offices). Participants are also
welcome to take partin classes concerning the prepara-
tion and execution of civic projects and teamwork.

In 2016, a new path was launched - the Kirkland Rese-
arch Project. This is a one-semester offer of research
and scientific internships for academics holding an esta-
blished position in participating countries. Interns follo-
wing this path write a scientific article under the supervi-
sion of their academic supervisor.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

Each year, the Kirkland Scholarship Program is attended
by 45 individuals. Between 2000 and 2020, the program
was completed by 880 people from 13 countries: 484
from Ukraine, 157 from Belarus, 58 from Georgia, 56
from Russia, 34 from Armenia, 24 from Moldova, 22 from
Kazakhstan, 12 from Lithuania, 10 from Slovakia, 10 from
Azerbaijan, 10 from Kyrgyzstan, 2 from Uzbekistan, and
1 scholar from Tajikistan.

The most popular faculties are economics and mana-
gement, and law. Also popular are social sciences, jo-
urnalism, political sciences, and international relations.
Academic staff, public institutions’ representatives and
experts have accounted for the largest number of pro-
fessionals coming to Poland.

After the program’s completion, the graduates keep in
regular touch among themselves and with their Polish
hosts through the bulletin, alumni reunions, and the
www.kirkland.edu.pl website. The alumni conferences,
held every few years, help maintain alumni ties with
Poland and with each other, as well as establish new
contacts. They also offer an opportunity to broaden
alumni knowledge about Poland and the European
Union, and to discuss possible directions of changes in
countries of the region. Former scholarship holders are
supported by the Coordinator of Post-Scholarship Pro-



jects whose task is to maintain graduates’ contacts with
Poland and encourage them to undertake joint initiatives
such as developing national alumni associations.

The coronavirus pandemic of 2020 forced the bulk of
program activities to shift online, e.g., integration and
knowledge-sharing meetings had to go digital.

Because of the pandemicrelated sanitary restrictions,
the planned 20th jubilee of the program had to be
called off. The Kirkland Scholars and Alumni meeting,
scheduled for May, was to be an important event of the
20th anniversary of PAFF. Instead other meetings be-
tween Kirkland alumni were held online and attended by
more than 150 participants.

Between 2001 and 2013, the Kirkland Program was ma-
naged by the Polish-U.S. Fulbright Commission. In the
following period leading up to 2016, the Education for

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

Democracy Foundation took over the task of managing
the program.

Since 2017, some of the Kirkland scholarships have been
financed from funding provided by the Polish National
Agency for Academic Exchange.

880

people from 13 countries completed

the Lane Kirkland Scholarship Program
since 2000. Each year approximately
45 scholarship holders participate

in the program.

REGION IN TRANSITION (RITA)

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$15,734,315

in grants, including $601,119 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGER:

» The Education for Democracy
Foundation

MORE INFORMATION AT:
Www.programrita.org

The program, launched in 2000, is addressed to non-governmental organizations willing to share
Poland’s experience of social and economic transformations with partners from Eastern European

countries, the Southern Caucasus, and Central Asia.

he program'’s open grant competitions award dona-
tions to Polish non-governmental organizations for
projects designed to share Polish experiences, especially
in building civil society, social assistance, transformation
of local government, education reform, and free media.

The maximum grant amount is PLN 60,000. About 30
grants are awarded annually.

As part of the program, organizations may also apply for
small travel grants which can be earmarked for project

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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Sharing the Polish Experiences in Transformation

consultation with a foreign partner before the application
for a regular grant is submitted, for strengthening coope-
ration with a partner organization or evaluation of an im-
plemented project. Under a special grant path, “RITA” Pro-
gram grants may be used for co-financing a larger project
for which a given organization had been awarded a grant
from other sources - Polish or foreign. However, such pro-
jects must comply with objectives of the “RITA” Program as
well as geographic and thematic areas of its operations.

Additionally, the program offers training opportunities
and expert support to Polish NGOs and schools, as well
as assistance in establishing contacts and developing
cooperation with foreign partners. Every two years me-
etings of the “RITA" Program grant recipients, "Ambassa-
dors of Transition in the Region”, are held. Information
exchange between organizations and civic leaders is
facilitated by the www.civicportal.org social networking
site. The portalis also an e-learning platform offering tra-
ining to Polish and foreign NGOs.

The main grant competition is announced twice a year.
Applications may be submitted by mid-March any by
mid-October. Applications for travel grants and sub-
sidies for larger projects are accepted on an on-going

1,092

projects designed to share Polish expe-
riences, especially in building civil society,
strengthening social activities, promoting
local government transformation, reforming
education, and functioning of the free media,
have been supported in the years 2000-2020.

basis until the funds earmarked for those activities are
exhausted.

In 2020, despite the pandemic restrictions, it was possi-
ble to maintain cooperation within international partner-
ships. Part of the program had to be carried out online.
Meetings with other applicants and recipients, and some
project activities implemented in cooperation with part-
ners based in the Region had to go digital as well.

Between 2000 and 2020, ,RITA" provided support to
1,092 projects.

STUDY TOURS TO POLAND (STP)

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$7,149,544

in grants, including $295,472 in 2020.

PROGRAM MANAGER:
» The Leaders of Change Foundation

MORE INFORMATION AT:
www.studytours.pl

Launched in 2004, the program is addressed to active university students and professionals from
countries of Eastern Europe and other post-communist states. The objective of the program is to

show participants the realities of Poland and the European Union as well as develop and strengthen
professional and personal contacts between young leaders from Eastern Europe and their Polish hosts.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation



niversity students are offered a study tour of more
U than ten days to Poland; the eligible candidates are
18 to 21 years old, they come from Belarus, Moldova,
Ukraine, and the Russian Federation - currently from
the Kaliningrad, Novgorod, Leningrad, and St. Peters-
burg regions, as well as from Moscow and Voronezh.
Students participating in the “STP” meet representatives
of the Polish academic environment, civic organizations,
leaders of public life; they also participate in lectures,
workshops, seminars, and cultural events.

Students apply to the program individually. The tours are
organized for mixed groups of about a dozen people co-
ming from various countries. They are held twice a year,
in the spring and the fall, and are managed by experien-
ced Polish NGOs selected in an open competition. Study
tours for students are coordinated by the Borussia Foun-
dation from Olsztyn.

The offer for professionals is addressed to representa-
tives of local governments, state administration, central
state institutions, NGOs, media, education, and other
professional groups from Eastern Europe, the Southern
Caucasus, and Central Asia. The tours, aimed at sharing
the Polish experiences in transformation and European
integration, are held in cooperation with Polish NGOs, as
well as central and local administration bodies.

After the Maidan events in 2014, special emphasis on
contacts with Ukraine has been placed on sharing expe-
rience with people involved in local government reform
and activities related to integration of Ukraine with EU
structures. Over the period from 2004 to 2020, study
tours to Poland were held for 6,557 citizens of Ukraine,
including 4,465 professionals and 2,092 students.

The recruitment of participants in study tours for profes-
sionals is preceded by a letter of intent sent to the “STP”
Program Office in Warsaw by an interested institution
and its partner organization from the countries of the
region, or by a Polish NGO or another institution.

Between 2004 and 2020, a total of 10,327 participants,
including 3,523 university students and 6,804 professio-
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nals representing various environments took part in the
study tours. Each year, Poland is visited by over 300 pro-
fessionals and 200 students.

Under the “Study Tours to Poland” Program, the Foun-
dation supports the Warsaw Euro-Atlantic Summer Aca-
demy (WEASA) - a joint initiative of PAFF, the German
Marshall Fund of the United States and the College of
Europe. The Academy offers two weeks of classes, based
at the Natolin campus, and is addressed to experts from
the EU Eastern Partnership countries, i.e. analysts, poli-
tical and government advisors, think tank and NGO staff,
civil servants, and journalists. In the years 2013-2016,
the thematic scope of the Academy focused on political
transformation, European integration, and transatlantic
relations. Since 2017, WEASA's main subjects have been
digital challenges, in particular cybersecurity. The 8th
WEASA edition titled “Public Speech, Private Platforms”
took the form of webinars and online meetings. In to-
tal, the eight (2013-2020) WEASA editions attracted 374
people from Eastern Partnership countries and (since
2017) Western Balkans, including: 38 participants from
Armenia, 29 from Azerbaijan, 34 from Belarus, 70 from
Georgia, 34 from Moldova, and 107 from Ukraine.

Due to the COVID pandemic and related restrictions,
study tours to Poland under the “STP” Program were su-
spended in March 2020. The “STP” alumni (both students
and professionals) maintain remote contact.

10,327

participants, both university students
and professionals representing various
environments took part in the study tours.
Each year Poland is visited by more

than 300 professionals and more

than 200 students.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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MONITORING, EVALUATION, ANALYSES (MEVA)

PAFF HAS DISBURSED

$2,434,292

in grants, including $144,270 in 2020.

R
-

“MEVA” is an expert-research program initiated in 2005. The primary purpose is to carry out
regular analytic research in order to maximize the effectiveness of other PAFF programs.
The methods developed under the program and the results of its analyses are also used

by other NGOs to pursue their activities.

he analytical work aids the process of determining

the extent to which the goals defined in PAFF pro-
grams and activities, as well as achieved results, meet
the existing needs and are capable of resolving the pro-
blems, especially with regard to local communities, equ-
al education opportunities and overall education quality
improvement.

Evaluation research of PAFF programs, such as ,Act Lo-
cally”, ,Third Age Universities”, or ,PAFF and UW School
of Education”, helps the Foundation to both determine
future program initiatives and modify the existing ones.
One of the tasks of ,MEVA" is to monitor completed PAFF
projects in terms of the durability of their outcomes.

PAFF's potential actions are evaluated in the context of
existing and expected social needs. To that end, selected
social groups and communities are studied - for exam-
ple village youth, librarians, or NGO employees - and
new initiatives are tested. An example is the study on key
trends influencing social activities in villages and small
towns and their impact on the role of a local leader, car-
ried outin 2019 under the “PAFF Leaders” Program. Ano-
ther example is the analysis of the Library Development
Program’s impact on its participants, which compared
program libraries with the libraries and communities
that did not participate in the program. In 2020, certa-

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

in analyses and evaluations (including ,Act Locally” and
the Library Development Program) have been aimed at
identifying the problems organizations faced during the
pandemic, so as to adjust programmatic actions to the
changing conditions. An analysis was also carried out to
assess the possibilities for PAFF and cooperating insti-
tutions to join local community educational and anima-
tion activities aimed at protecting the environment and
climate. The program also led to the establishment of a
working Digital Challenges Group whose secretariat is si-
tuated at the Information Society Development Founda-
tion. The Group brings together representatives of PAFF
Programs Managers to support knowledge and expe-
rience exchange between its members, i.e. experts and
NGOs. The purpose of this exchange is to better under-
stand the threats (e.g. disinformation) and opportunities
(e.g. educational) arising from the constant development
of digital technologies and the resulting changes in the
functioning of societies. The Group will focus on rese-
arch directed at bridging the gaps in NGOs' understan-
ding of digital challenges. Research results are meant to
support further development of the Group’'s members
as well as to become an open source of knowledge for
individuals and institutions from outside the Group.

As part of the “MEVA” Program, mutually complementing
and strengthening elements of PAFF programs are ana-



lyzed in order to improve the quality and effectiveness of
the Foundation’s activities overall. Among the projects
serving that aim is the “Squared Evaluation” initiative hel-
ping foster evaluation culture among the organizations
closely cooperating with PAFF, part of which the “Evalu-
ation - How do You Carry It out?” guide was prepared.
Cyclical seminars about evaluation research are also
being held. Special among these is the “Impact on So-
cial Capital in PAFF Communities” project (the so-called
,BOX") that helped create and test out a set of methods
and research techniques enabling the determination of
changes in the social capital level resulting from the im-
pact of Foundation programs on local communities.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

Through ,MEVA", PAFF supports the Shipyard Founda-
tion (which it co-founded). At the same time, the Shipy-
ard Foundation is the manager of a significant part of the
“MEVA" Program itself.

PAFF’s potential actions are evaluated

in the context of existing and expected
social needs. To that end, selected social
groups and communities are studied - for
example village youth, librarians, or NGO
employees - and new initiatives are tested.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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ENGLISH TEACHING

"THANK YOU FOR THE CHOCOLATE"
— LEARNING ENGLISH THE SWEET WAY

The coronavirus pandemic may have ushered in social isolation, but failed to stop Ambassadors
of the “English Teaching” Program from improving the language skills of Polish learners.

A nna Krzeminska-Kaczynska worked with educators
of the WorldLINK Foundation to organize a lesson
cycle titled “Thank You for the Chocolate” for pupils
of the Henryk Sucharski Primary School in Sadki (the
Cuyavian-Pomeranian Province). While listening to the
story of the contracting chain behind chocolate produc
tion, workshop participants learned what global edu-
cation is and what competencies it requires. They also
found out why it is worthwhile to learn English and how
to go about it.

“The outbreak of the pandemic left us with two options.
We could wait until normal life is resumed, or seek alter-
native solutions. Idleness was out of the question. After
all, we are living in a global village and have increasingly
effective technologies at hand. We decided on adjusting
our program to an online format”, said Anna Krzemin-
ska-Kaczyriska, Founder and President of the WorldLINK
Foundation.

“It was not easy, as this choice rendered us computer-
-bound for several weeks. It was worth it, though. The
workshops turned out to be very interesting. | learned
many new things about global education. | took more no-

A S

The outbreak of the pandemic
left us with two options. We could
wait until normal life is resumed,
or seek alternative solutions.
Idleness was out of the question.
After all, we are living in a global
village and have increasingly
effective technologies at hand.
Anna Krzeminska-Kaczyriska

Ambassador of the “English Teaching” Program 1||‘

iy
—

tes than I normally do at school. It was also an occasion
to test my English, and I'm really happy about the results.
I'm starting to think about studying abroad!” summed up
Lidia, a participant.

What caught learners’ attention? It was important mat-
ters which are usually ignored at school that sparked
interest. What does it mean that the world functions
like a global village? What is it like to study in other co-
untries? Is it possible to choose any goal | want to for
my personal development? What possibilities are there
for me to continue my education abroad, and what do |
need to do that? How do | go about time management,
self-motivation, and convincing others? These are just
some of the issues discussed at a few of the sessions
attended by learners.

The "ET" Program Ambassador invited young people
from other schools to join the lessons as well. A total of
more than 100 English learners and teachers took partin
the lesson cycle prepared by Anna Krzeminska-Kaczynska,
involving Natasha Sharma, Communications Director at
the WorldLINK Foundation.
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

3D PRINTING TO COUNTERACT THE PANDEMIC

The initiative taken in turbulent times by a group of Pawtoszewo youth (the Lower Silesia Province)
to support healthcare staff and the local community by producing face shields is a very good
example of how some projects implemented under PAFF programs were aligned with aid

measures taken during the pandemic.

articipants of the “Pawtoszewo in 3D? Why not?”
found inspiration in the global “Printers for Hospi-
tals” campaign.

A 3D printer was purchased for initial project purposes,
i.e. so that the young people could design and create
a 3D model of Pawtoszewo buildings. On the Internet,
the young people found a visor frame design and adju-
steditto local needs. When selecting the face shield mo-
del, they followed current Polish sanitary and epidemio-
logical guidelines. PET foil, elastic bands and a 3D printer
filament were purchased to produce the visors. Support
came from scouts and local businesspeople.

Printing a single face shield takes a whopping 4.5 ho-
urs. PET or Easy PET filaments should be used, because
they are easy to sanitize. The print-outs must be elastic.
“We're getting some very positive feedback from doctors
and emergency medical services. We've heard multiple
times that our face shields are better than the standard
visors purchased by hospitals for their staff’, project
participants claimed with pride. They drafted their own

A

We welcome each and every hour
of 3D printing, the aid offered by
ordinary people, and the happi-
ness of the future recipients of
the face shields. After all, is it not
goodness that we are printing?

The young people of Pawtoszewo
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instructions for sanitizing the face shields to ensure their
longer usability.

The first face shield lot was delivered to the EMS Depart-
ment in Wotdw, and the second lot went to the hospital
in Brzeg Dolny. The next face shields found their way to
individuals: a saleslady at a grocery store, a clerk at the
local government office, and a salesman at a gas station.
When combined with face masks, visors were very effec-
tive at protecting users against a coronavirus infection.

Project participants received many thanks, among
others from the Wotéw Governor who wrote that he was
impressed by their involvement in acting for the local
community and developing such an initiative in the di-
strict. “We welcome each and every hour of 3D printing,
the aid offered by ordinary people, and the happiness
of the future recipients of the face shields. After all, is it
not goodness that we are printing? Our project should
be renamed to “Goodness in 3D? Why not?” said leaders
of the Pawtoszewo initiative with a smile on their face.
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FROM BRIDGE SCHOLAR TO CERN INTERN

Aleksandra Bartkowska graduated from the Warsaw University of Technology. The Bridge
Scholarships Program provided her with support during the first year of her studies and a foreign
language scholarship. As a “Bridge Scholarships” alumna, she was actively involved in the “Career
and Labor Market” workshops and the “Scientific Start” conference held for bridge scholars. From
April 2019 to May 2020, she completed an internship at the European Organization for Nuclear
Research (CERN) under the Technical Studentship program.

IIA s a member of the Vacuum, Surface and Coatings
(VSC) group which worked on vacuum systems
for particle accelerators and detectors, | was part of the
Surface, Chemistry and Coatings (SCC) section entru-
sted with coating, surface treatment, surface analysis,
and chemical analysis of the materials used in partic
le accelerators and detectors”, explained Aleksandra
Bartkowska.

Her tasks included placing niobium coatings on copper
surfaces with HiPIMS (High-power impulse magnetron
sputtering), while using a broad spectrum of parameters
and analyzing the content of residue gases in the created
layers by means of the laser ablation method, using an
excimer laser and mass spectrometry.

A

It was an incredible experience,
abounding in new information,
giving me possibilities for learning
innovative, unique research techni-
ques and experiencing the immen-
se international group of scientists
from many parts of the world.

Aleksandra Bartkowska

scholar

Moreover, the internship took her to many seminars and
lectures on pending CERN research as well as the outlo-
ok for this organization’s development.

“It was an incredible experience, abounding in new in-
formation, giving me possibilities for learning innovati-
ve, unique research techniques and experiencing the
immense international group of scientists from many
parts of the world. | could observe the rules governing
such a large scientific organization first hand. I met many
young science enthusiasts with whom | quickly made
friends. | believe that these will be years-long friend-
ships”, said Aleksandra.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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PROJECTOR - STUDENT VOLUNTEERS

"MAKE THE CUT TO ONLINE KNOWLEDGE"

The student-volunteers of the “PROJECTOR” program decided to relieve some of the burden from
working-at-home parents taking care of their children during the pandemic. Such was the objective
behind the “Make the Cut to Online Knowledge” campaign conducted from April to June 2020.

IIW e all have different experiences and completely
different passions. We wanted to share them in
these difficult times”, said Aleksandra Skorzynska-Surowiec
of the “PROJECTOR - Student Volunteers” Program Office.

The idea behind the campaign was to motivate children
to learn by showing them short videos and video pre-
sentations. The students created multimedia materials
falling within five thematic areas: people and society,
free time and animation, science and technology, culture
and arts, health and sports. The videos they cut enco-
uraged learners to work individually, with their parents
or siblings.

Campaign initiators Weronika Madejek and Marta Chorna
gave advice to those inexperienced in working in front
of webcams.

A

We all have different experiences
and completely different passions.
We wanted to share them in

these difficult times.

Aleksandra Skorzynska-Surowiec
“PROJECTOR - Student Volunteers” Program

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

“We collected video materials, verified them, and publi-
shed them online. We then sent out information about
the campaign to the target audience: children, young
people, parents, and teachers”, explained Aleksandra
Skorzynska-Surowiec.

The campaign resulted in the making of 28 videos on a
variety of topics. All are available at montujemywiedze.
projektor.org.pl and the #MontujemyWiedze Youtube
and Youtube Kids channels. The campaign enjoyed gre-
at popularity in social media. Overall, Facebook reached
nearly half a million recipients.
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OBSERVATION. A TEACHER'S WORK TOOL

The School of Education of the Polish-American Freedom Foundation and the University of Warsaw
guides students on how to be attentive teachers. The School teaches students how to notice and
appreciate the weaknesses of their learners, and themselves as well. SE alumna Aleksandra Korba
discusses the importance of observation in the work of a teacher.

H/A\ t the School of Education, | learned that observa-
tion was the most frequently employed research
and diagnostic method there. SE workshops, along with
the psychological and teaching apprenticeship, prepa-
red me for carrying out my own observations while wor-
king with learners”, said Aleksandra Korba.

Careful observation helps teachers select teaching me-
thods adjusted to learner needs, and then monitor the
effectiveness of the choices they made. Because they
are focused on leading a class, providing explanations,
answering questions and monitoring learner behavior,
beginner teachers find it difficult to pay attention to the-
ir own reactions. That is why it is so important to learn
how to do just that. During their apprenticeships at the

A

At the School of Education,

I learned that observation was
the most frequently employed
research and diagnostic
method there.

Aleksandra Korba

teacher and PAFF-UW
School of Education alumna

School of Education students observe a lesson conduc
ted by a different teacher, an experienced mentor. As
the students observe how someone else handles a class
they witness reactions worth replicating, and identify
areas where there is room for improvement.

The observation method is important at every step of a
teacher’s professional journey. “I feel that the observa-
tion skills and tools are a key element of what | learned at
the School of Education: | can now make the best possi-
ble use of the observation process. | can see the impact
on my pupils, but also on myself. Observation helps me
decide on the direction for my personal development
and what to do to become a better teacher every day”,
shared the School of Education alumna.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

45



PEOPLE, PROJECTS, INITIATIVES

THIRD AGE UNIVERSITIES (TAU)

THE "FACTORY OF IDEAS" IN SKIERNIEWICE

The name of this intergenerational project is a reference to the history of Skierniewice
(the Lédz Province), namely to the now abandoned Rawent factory of steel structures.
The “Factory of Ideas” originated with social animator Zofia Cieslak, who also initiated and
now chairs the Rawka Seniors Club, along with teacher and theater instructor Tomasz Staron.

or decades, Rawent was the center of Rawka social

life, as the factory employed most of its population.
Rawent's 2002 liquidation had a very negative effect on
its staff, especially that most were nearing retirement at
the time. This led to apathy. People were unwilling to le-
ave their homes, especially because the factory housing
estate is located far from the town and cultural centers.
As time passed, it was mainly the elderly who continued
to live in the Rawka estate.

The aim of “Factory of Ideas” initiators was to break the
apathy of Rawka social life, engage senior residents in
new activities, and restore the memory of this quarte-
r's former greatness. Consultations with older residents
triggered the idea of organizing a picnic combined with
an exhibition of photographs taken when the factory
was still in operation, a concert of songs popular in the
times of the Polish People’s Republic (PRL), and a theater
play about life back then. “We wanted seniors to venture
out of their houses, to have a celebration of their own in
their housing estate”, explained Zofia Cieslak. “Memories

A

We wanted seniors to venture
out of their houses, to have

a celebration of their own

in their housing estate.

Zofia Cieslak

social animator and chair
of Rawka Seniors Club.
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of times long past were the common ground for all acti-
vities. They were the basis for the play and the exhibition
of photographs”, added Tomasz Staron.

Despite the pandemic, the project was embraced with
enthusiasm by the community living in the Rawka estate
in Skierniewice. During the theater, vocal and handicraft
workshop cycle, elder residents prepared a theater and
musical show recorded as a film titled “In the Distorted
Mirror of the PRL", an exhibition of photographs titled
“And it all Started with Rawent” documenting the times
when the factory was operational, as well as the “Color-
ful Little Wonders” handicraft exhibition. These activities
offered older and younger estate residents a trip to the
past, which is still alive and well in the memory of the
older generation.

What is also important is that the “Factory of Ideas” be-
came a local starting point for further social initiatives.
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KURSODROM - A NEW TAKE
ON E-LEARNING FOR NGO MANAGERS

Kursodrom was launched in 2013 under the “NGO Managers” (“PROMENGO") program implemented
by the Academy of Civic Organizations Foundation (FAOO). This remote learning platform is used
mainly by NGO experts and managers seeking to enhance their qualifications.

n 2020, the e-learning platform was revamped and

a new Kursodrom version is now available. “Changes
were introduced to graphic design, but also to the me-
thods used for cataloging and presenting materials. The
website is much more legible and user-friendly, though
that is not the only reason to visit Kursodrom”, said Lidia
Kuczmierowska, FAOO President. “We noticed that many
people decided to use the time freed up by the pande-
mic to improve their skills. Kursodrom is the perfect pla-
ce for self study”, she indicated.

Fundraising, organization management, human resour-
ce management, personal development, and new tech-
nologies in NGOs are only some of the issues one can
study with Kursodrom. Students are welcome to use 70
extensive courses, more than 30 guides, and more than

2

We noticed that many people
decided to use the time freed
up by the pandemic to improve
their skills. Kursodrom is

the perfect place for self study.

Lidia Kuczmierowska

President of the Academy of Civic
Organizations Foundation

180 multimedia educational materials. Once a student
completes a course, they have the option of taking a
test and obtaining a course certificate. More than 2,500
participants succeeded in receiving course completion
credentials to date.

The count of Kursodrom'’s registered users has already
exceeded 6,000. Each year brings another thousand le-
arners on average.

“The e-learning platform was designed mainly as an
educational space for NGO staff, but it is open to other
groups as well. An analysis of Kursodrom user profiles
showed that the platformis also popular with school and
university employees, local government officials and en-
trepreneurs”, Lidia Kuczmierowska summed up.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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ACT LOCALLY

ZYWIEC: PASSIONATE ABOUT ECOLOGY

The “WE act with PASSION"” Association of Friends of the School and Pre-School Complex No. 2 in
Zywiec (the Silesia Province) unleashed the social energy in the local community by embarking
on a 2020 project where children and youth worked with Oczkowo quarter residents to create

their dream ecological garden with a greenhouse.

1 his is our Association’s first initiative. Ecological

activity proved the perfect stepping stone for
working together with the local community. It also lent
itself well to filling the free time of children, youth, and
other members of the local community. The initiative in-
volved them in various actions mitigating the negative
effects of pandemicinduced social isolation”, clarified
Joanna Goérna, President of the “WE act with PASSION”
Association.

As part of the project, participants outlined a route pas-
sing through nineteen ecological sites scattered across
Zywiec. Each spot played an important role in the history
and culture of the region. A tourist map is now available
for travelers willing to take this route. In keeping with he-
alth and safety rules, workshops on crafts and ecology

2

It also lent itself well to filling

the free time of children, youth,
and other members of the local
community. The initiative involved
them in various actions mitigating
the negative effects of pandemic-
induced social isolation.

—
Joanna Gérna

President of the “WE Act with PASSION”
Association
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were held. Participants were welcome to weave macra-
mes, sew bags from fabric scraps, decorate ecological
plant pots, and crotchet.

The “On the Trail of Trash” campaign had Oczkowo resi-
dents clean up their area. “The competition, combined
with the ‘Recycled Wonders' school exhibition, was right
on target. Children gave trash a‘second life’ and display-
ed great creativity in coming up with elaborate forms”,
Joanna Gérna enthusiastically reported.

The project attracted great interest from the local
Oczkowo community. More than 300 people joined the
campaign. Collective actions helped integrate the resi-
dents of this Zywiec quarter and acted as an impulse for
further social initiatives.




2020 ANNUAL REPORT

"SECTOR 3.0" AWARD GOES TO VIRTUAL DREAM

PLN 40,000 went to Piotr t6j, founder of Virtual Dream - the winner of this year's PAFF
“Sector 3.0” Award. The jury recognized the foundation for using virtual reality to work
with hospices and old-age homes, and support rehabilitation therapy of the paralyzed.

he jury also expressed its appreciation for the fact

that the foundation was quick to provide aid in re-
sponse to the pandemic. Virtual Dream and its patrons
started producing face shields for healthcare staff at
the very outset of the crisis.

Virtual Dream uses the virtual realm to treat and provi-
de therapy to paralyzed patients, a globally innovative
concept. “VR goggles, along with specially designed and
recorded videos, support the rehabilitation of accident
victims by using images to stimulate neurotransmitters.
VR is also useful in oncology hospices for children and
old-age homes. There, Virtual Dream fulfills the dreams
of bed-ridden patients by taking them to worlds where

Virtual Dream fulfills the dreams
of bed-ridden patients by taking
them to worlds where their bodily
imperfections no longer prevent
them from making their

dreams come true.

Piotr £6j

founder of Virtual Dream Foundation,
winner of PAFF “Sector 3.0” Award

their bodily imperfections no longer prevent them from
making their dreams come true,” explained the winner of
the 2020 “Sector 3.0" Award.

Piotr £0j's activity has garnered him many invitations
to international conferences in Israel, South Korea, and
the USA.

Virtual Dream has cooperated with the UN and the Red
Cross in Geneva, and Polish healthcare facilities, i.a. the
Medical University of Warsaw, the Institute of Mother
and Child, and Saint Barbara's Voivodeship Specialist
Hospital No. 5 in Sosnowiec.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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PAFF LOCAL PARTNERSHIPS

'S.OW.A. VIRTUAL SPACE”

Created in 2012 as a result of the revitalization of the neglected Solidarity Park in Bitgoraj's center
(the Lublin Province) on the initiative of the Bilgoraj Land Local Fund Foundation (FFLZB) and a
group of local partners, “S.0.W.A.” has established itself as a space for people who show Solidarity,
Openness, Freedom, and Activity. Bitgoraj's local government, in cooperation with the Zwierzyniec
Commune, entered S.0.W.A. into the local zoning plan.

1 wing to the pandemic situation, which has parti-

Ocularly affected small local communities, we deci-
ded to create a new space, only in the virtual world this
time. We created a studio for online transmission and
editing, furnished with all the necessary equipment”,
explained Irena Gadaj, FFLZB President. “And so this spa-
ce hosts the program activities of local NGOs and social
campaigns carried out during the pandemic”, she added.

One example was the online campaign which suppor-
ted a public fundraiser for scholarships awarded under
the Bitgoraj Scholarship Fund. “We collected PLN 6,500
thanks to the campaign. These funds will be allocated
to scholarships for talented and active youth”, rejoiced
Iwona Dublinska, project coordinator.

2

Owing to the pandemic situation,
which has particularly affected
small local communities, we deci-
ded to create a new space, only in
the virtual world this time . We cre-
ated a studio for online transmis-
sion and editing, equipped with all
the necessary equipment.

Irena Gadaj

President of the Bitgoraj Land Local Fund
Foundation (FFLZB)
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“S.O.W.A. Virtual Space” also hosts the Online Donor
Evening. This event has a long-standing tradition in Bit-
goraj, yet due to the pandemic it had to be held online
this time. Foundation friends and partners participate
in this event. “This year's income exceeded PLN 22,000.
We are glad that the Online Donor Evening turned out
to be such a great success”, the Foundation's President
summed up.

The “S.O.W.A. Virtual Space” project was executed in
2020 and financed from the funds of the Common Good
Laboratory Development Fund which associates pro-
gram alumni as part of the sixth round of “PAFF Local
Partnerships”.
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11" NATIONAL LIBRARY CONGRESS:
"LIBRARY - A LOT IS GOING ON/"

The motto of this year's 11th National Library Congress, held online for the first time owing to
the pandemic conditions, refers to the new situation of libraries - global activity coming to a halt,
a new hybrid reality, change of priorities, and the need to find a new format for library activities.

he event attracted nearly 800 librarians who partici-

pated in workshops and panels involving prominent
literature experts and practitioners engaged in social
activity and new technologies. Writer and reporter Filip
Springer was this year's special guest of the Congress.

PAFF Program Director Joanna Lempart, and President
of the Information Society Development Foundation Ja-
cek Krélikowski opened the Congress. “The new library,
now operating hybrid, has a much more important role
to play in the context of pandemic-created isolation. It
helps one find oneself, as it provides access to culture
and readership, therefore changing the world for the
better”, said Jacek Krolikowski. Event participants reflec-
ted on the challenges faced by libraries: creating a local
community, reinstating local figures of authority, and
granting access to reliable information.

The new library, now operating
hybrid, has a much more
important role to play in the
context of pandemic-created
isolation. It helps one find oneself,
as it provides access to culture
and readership, therefore
changing the world for the better.

Jacek Krélikowski

President of the Information
Society Development Foundation

Next, Gazeta Wyborcza journalist Michat Noga$ invited
writers Renata Lis, Sylwia Chutnik, and Wojciech Szot to
discuss how literature was describing the modern world
and whether it was socially involved. As the Congress
unfolded, participants joined seminars held by expert-
-practitioners, i.a. NGO representatives whose daily ro-
utine involves working with social matters.

The organizers also secured a virtual space for meetings
with speakers. Participants could enter separate “bre-
akout” rooms and enjoy a more intimate conversation
with a selected expert about the details of the issues co-
vered at seminars. Between seminars, participants co-
uld join virtual “coffee breaks” and meet other Congress
participants.
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REGION IN TRANSITION (RITA)

THE POLISH-KAZAKH REGIONAL CENTER FOR
SAFETY AND EMERGENCY MEDICINE EDUCATION

Implemented in 2020 by the Bydgoszcz-based European Center for Sports and Emergency Medicine
in partnership with the Zhubanov University in Kazakhstan, this project aimed at enhancing
the competencies of Aktobe city and region residents in providing pre-medical first aid
in compliance with Polish Red Cross standards and European Resuscitation Council guidelines.

olish-Kazakh cooperation responded to a signifi-
P cant problem due to the lack of knowledge about
the basic principles of pre-medical first aid in Kazakh-
stan. It ought to be noted that the Kazakh Ministry of
Health issued a special law defining pre-medical first aid
standards based on, among others, Polish experiences
in this area.

Polish-Kazakh cooperation brought about by the project
led to the establishment of the Polish-Kazakh Regional
Center for Safety and Emergency Medicine Education
at the Zhubanov University in Aktobe. The Center was
equipped with necessary training equipment, including
first-aid mannequins, training defibrillators, and training
materials in Kazakh and Russian.

“The project attracted great interest. More than 500
people were willing to participate, and training was pro-
vided to 165 training participants’, Agnieszka Swieczka,

A

The project attracted great
interest. More than 500 people
were willing to participate,
and training was provided

to 165 training participants.

Agnieszka Swieczka

Project Coordinator, the Education
for Democracy Foundation

reedom Foundation

Project Coordinator at the Education for Democracy
Foundation, was pleased to note. Other applicants are
being instructed by Kazakh trainers of the Zhubanov
University, who had been trained by Polish experts.
The project’s target group is made up of about 30,000
Aktobe residents. Reaching out across the region will be
possible thanks to student-volunteers of the Zhubanov
University.

“These actions are a perfect example of an effective
'RITA" partnership. However, their implementation would
not be possible without the involvement of the following
project partners: the Embassy of Kazakhstan in Po-
land, the University of Economy in Bydgoszcz, the Byd-
goszcz City Hall, and Laerdal Medical Poland”, Agnieszka
Swieczka emphasized.
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"ALUMNI FOR ALUMNI" WEBINARS

Owing to the COVID-19 pandemic and resulting restrictions, the organization of study visits
to Poland and STP alumni meetings had to be suspended in March of the previous year.
Program participants decided to initiate online contacts, and “Alumni for Alumni” webinars

was one such initiative.

his alumni initiative received support from the “STP”

Program Team and was quickly embraced by alum-
ni of different years and professionals from almost all
“STP” countries.

The webinars were aimed primarily at keeping in touch,
but also at sharing professional experiences and intere-
sts. This idea stemmed from a workshop cycle held to
celebrate the fifteenth anniversary of the “Study Tours
to Poland” program in September 2019.

The webinars touched upon various issues: building
a personal brand, working as a freelancer, succeeding
as an analyst, decision-making, and coping with stress
amid the pandemic.

A
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The Alumni for Alumni’ series .
of meetings gave us the possibility =
of exchanging experiences.
I talked about my stay in Poland -

as a Kirkland scholar.

Anna Korbut

journalist and Kirkland alumna.

Ukrainian journalist Anna Korbut, one of the webinar
speakers and 2019/20 Kirkland scholar, held a workshop
on the relations between man and nature in modern
photography. “The ‘Alumni for Alumni’ series of meetings
gave us the possibility of exchanging experiences. | tal-
ked about my stay in Poland as a Kirkland scholar, among
others. | am glad that | could share my achievements
with such a wonderful audience”, said Anna.

Between April and March, this alumni initiative resulted in
18 webinars attracting approx. 20 “STP” participants each.

Polish-American Freedom Foundation
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INDEPENDENT ALHTOR'S REPORT

T the Boged of Direciers the Polinh-Amarican Fresdom Fousdation

Opinion

e have audited the conschdated financial statements of the Polish-Armerican Freedom Foundation
{1k “Coepodation”), kocated in the Linited 3tates of Amedica, which compras the consolidated statomaent
of linancial podition as of Decernber 31, 2020, and the comobidated statoment of actiites, and consoldaied
statgmant of cash ficws for the yaar then erded, and notes to the corsoldated financial statements, including
a sammary of sgrificant accounging policies {“Consolidated financial satements ™)L

in o opinion, the sttomparying Cordalidsted financial statements present faidly, in all materal respects,
ke ponscfidated Onancial position of the Corporstion & o Detember 31, 2020, and i3 consolidaed Fnandial
perfocrmance and il comuolidated cath fowa fof the year thes ended in sctordancs with the spplicable sccounting
principles generally accopiad in che Unitpd States of Amnorica and tha adopted accounting polickss,

Basis for Cipinicn

‘We conducted our awdit in scoordance with international Standards on Auditeg (B8], Owr nesporadlitiel whder
those standards sie further dedcribed in the Auditor's Besponsibilities for the ducht of the Consobdoted Francial
Frataments section af our reporL

We ane indepardent of the Coaporation in accomdance with the principles of grefessional ethics spacilied
in the Ieviernational Code of Ethics for Prolassiceal Accountants (inchuding Intrnationad indeparadence Standands)
["Code of ethics™) developed and lsued by the International Exhics Standards Board for Accountants, and we
have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of ethics.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtsred & dulficient and apgropiiate 10 piovide a basi for o
DERESn,

Responsibdiny of Managemssnt and Those Charged with Gosernance For the Consofidated Fingacial Statemants

The Cowpaoration’s Managomant i responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of Conscbdated firancial
vtatementy in accordance with accowmiing principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for
wuch internal contnol a3 the Corporabion’s Manapement determires. B necessary to enable the preparation
o Cormolidsted firuncisl statemems that are Tree from msterial misstatemenl, whether due to fraud or e,

Ir preparnng (e Consohdased financial statements, the Corperation’s Management B reiponsibie for Jspessing
the Corparation's abilty 1o continue a3 3 goieg cordern, dsclosing, as applicable, matten relited 1o poing concem
ared usiegg the gosng concarn basis of accoenting unless the Comporaion’s Managemand ssther imerd 1o liquidate
they Corparation, of to cease operalions, of has no realstic altemative but 1o do s,

Thome charged with govennance are respongible for pverseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Cmiie refern 12 oo o move of Ceizats Towrhs Tobesetse (mrwd, 8 U greams Y wrd o i wmh of
aFec i o gy i e . ki et o of the agst o Dipicein Tarcha
rrdnd Fd Ferma

V=i ol ity toxte Tobew wi i

Finioret Lot Bpa g 15 o Wasinm | ot gite, §0Y e, (EODABAEEY maw 01105000 0, IGON TR0 PRE)
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Deloitte.

muditar's Responiibiities for the Audit

O objectivis arg 10 obtan reagonable asssrance aboul whaether the Comoliidated financial statements
&5 a whole are fres from material misstatement, whather dug to fraud or gvror, and fo ssue an suditor’s reporn
that includes cur opinion. Reasonable ssurance is a high kevel of assurance, but s not a puarantee that an audi
conducted in atcordance with Bas will abyvays detect 3 materal mastaiement when it exsts. Mastatements can
arie from fracd or error and are condidened mterial I, indnvadually or in the aggnigate, they coald restonably be
expetted 10 nlluence the scondmic decisions ol wieds Taken on the bashy of these Consabdated Tindncisl
SEALEEnENT.

A5 part of an audil in accordance with 1545, we sudrcig peoleasional judgment and maintain proligasional
shepticism thecughout the acdit. We alsp:

= hentily and assess the eisks of material mésatatement of the Corsolidated fnancial staements, whather dus
to fraid oF grror, design and perform audt procedunes responsive (o thosa risks, and obitain audit evidence
thai b sulficient and appropriate to provide a basts for our opinice. The risk of nol detecting a material
misstabement resulting from fraud ks highes than for one resulting from error, a3 fraud may invober coffusion,
Torgery, imtentioral omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal controk;

= obtain an undersianding of internal contnol releant to the aodit in order 1o design audit peooedures. that
ane appropriate in the circurrgtances, but not for the purpose of expeessing an opinkon oo the oifectheness
of the Corporation’s inbermal cosrbrol;

= evaloate the apgropriateness of sccounting pelicies used and the reascrableness of accounting Bslimates
and refated dischosures made by Management;

= conchude on the spproprisioness of Mansgement's uee of the going concern basks of accousing and, based
or the sudit evidence pbtained, whether a materiad uncertaingy exists retated o events or (orditions that
gy Cinl significant dowbt on the Conporation’s ability 10 continue a5 3 going concern. if v conchude that
B matérisl uncilainty exils, we &ré required to diaw attention i ow suditor™s report to the related
disclosiared in ke Consofidated financial viatemants of, il such decioiures s insdequate, fo modily o
opEnion, Dur congludrdg are based on tha audit evielenie obiained up bo The date ﬂ“mﬂ'lm
thﬂlf.fmulmHmﬁﬂﬁuﬁmyumhﬂm&ﬂmmumﬂuiﬂumm

= avaluate the mverall presentation, sinactune and content of the Consolidated financial statements, includieg
the dischosuras snd whether the Consclidated financial ssteenents represen the underling tramactions
and gvents ina manner that ackees falr presentation:

= pliain gudlicient approgiate audt svidence reganding the linancial information of the entites of businesies
acihvitbes within thiy Corporation 10 gxpress &0 opinion an the Conscldated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supendsion and performance of the group audit. We remain solely respormible
fior aur audit opinipn,

We comemusnicabe with thode charged with governance reganding. among other matters, the plrned soope and
timning of the sudit and sgnificant sudi fndings, inchuding any significant deficencies in intemal control 1hat vwe
idenify during ous sudit.

bl f'-'n.»J."r of- oo ﬁPL

Deloitie fudyt Spatka 7 cgranicrong odpowiedialngiciy sp k.

Warsaw, Aprd 30, 201
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[ X X J FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASESETS

ASEETE:

Investmants, al fasr valws (Moles 3 and §)
Carmimsan and Prefermed Shocks
Pubdic Mutual Fund — Fized Income
Alernative Imaasiments
Private Mulwal Fund - Equity
Cash and cash aguivalanis (Moles 3 and 5)
Invesiment redemplions receivable
Land and fuosd assets, net (Mole T)
Loans, net of alowance for loan losses (Mote %)
Frepaid expanses and other assels

Tolal assels

LIABILITIES AMD MET ASSETE

LIAEILITIES

Granls payable (Note 3)
ACCORINTS FI'H.'yFlTﬂF." and aconied BEEpENSES

Talal hatuhbes

MET ASSETS (Mate 2}

With donor resinctions
Withcul donor resinctions

Todal liabilives and net assels

3 55205808
15.471,833
163,148 303
28997 713
27121280
367/6,652
4,193,982
4,321,814
16,059,061

F 318.195,454

$  TAS4EES
274,219

§0E8 el

304 467 550

5 6195454

The acoompanying notes are an inkegral pad of these consolidated financsal stalements
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POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Without Donor

Restrictions
Changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Incroases innet asscts wilhout donor restidions:
Interest and dvidend income 5 9BA.35%
Polsh Government Support - COVID-19 43 B15
Talal Income 1037174
Dacreases in nat assals without donor restricions:
Emgployes compensation and benefils 1,431 8941
Operaling axpenses SE1 H6E
Oooupancy 114,020
Depreciabon and amortizabon 124 BOE
Tolal decrease in nel assels withowl dondr resinclions 2232731
Grants (Mote 3) (12,792.483)
Grants and decrease i nel assets withoul donor resinchions in
oxcess of iIncome {13,988,020)
Ned realized gain on smeestroents (Modc 6] 9,627 932
Neld unrealized appreciation on mvesiments (Mote 6) 27,107 657
Mel cuirency remeaswrement gaim (Mobe 3) 355764
Tolal merease in nel assels wilhoul donor resinclions 23,003 534
Met assets wilvout donor restnclicns, beginmng of the year 285 464 216
Met assets without donor restrictions, end of the year 4 308 467 550

Th: accompdanyng nobes ane an intégral part of these consolidated financial stalements.
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POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
Cash flows rom operaking acivities:!
Increase in net assets withoud donor restrichons 23,003 334
Adiusiments 1o recondile decrease in net assets wilhoul donor
resinchons (o net cash used in operalng acliviles
Ml realized gain on invesimeanls [9.52 ?'_933}
Mel unrealized appreciation on invesimenls [27.107 BST)
Mel cumency remeasuremeanl gamn (355,764
Proweigion far kban losses 25,342
Cepreciation and amorzation 134,802
Increase in accred inferest on koans (832)
Decreasa in accrued inferest on mvesiments 4 105
Increase in ineestiment redemalion receivable (3.451,124)
Increase in prepaid expensas [12.397 36E)
Descréass in accounts paable and accrudd expenses (84,141}
Incresase in gramts payable 1,781 362
Wei cash used in operating actwities (27 8956 0F4)
Cash floeers from investing acliviliss
Proceeds from salesiedemplion of mmvesiments 71326475
Cost of imvestments purchased (21,875 436)
Loans disbursed (4.233,344)
Proceeds from loan repayments 4,558,738
Purchagse of haed assets {25613)
Wei cash provided by imvesiing activities 29,490 816
Effizcts of aachange rale changes on cash and cash equivalents S57 801
M increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,993,543
Cash and cash aguivalents, baginning of year 25 127 TIT
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 27 121,260
The accompanying notes are an integral par of these consolidated inanoal slatements.
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POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020

1. ORGAMIZATION

The Palish-fmencan Fresdom Foundation (Ihe “Foundation”, and, logethes with ds Subsideary, e
“Corperabon’) s a U3, notlor-profil corporation established on August 11, 1989, The Foundalion was
created by the Polsh-Amenican Enterprise Fund {ihe “Fund®) to advance ihe purposss of the Support for
East Eurcpean Democracy Act of 1988 by building upon the successful assistance programs and sound
practices aslablished by the Fund, and o underake other developmental infialives designed o solidsdy
Podard's suceesstul ransibon 1o democracy and ree markets.

The Foundalion concendrales ils effods in ihvee main program areas: () Intiatives in Educaton, i)
Development of Local Communities, and (i) Shanng the Folish Expenences in Transformaton, The
Foundation genarally seeks an external program manager (typically a well-established non-governmental
organizalion in Poland) 1o execute the objectives of each individual grant, thereby leveraging ihe
Foundalicn's rescurces. The Foundation does nol have ownership or control of the external program
MaNagers.

Wil the permission of the Minister of Foreign Affaers of Podand, the Foundation maintams a representative
affice in Poland [Ihe *Representative Ofice™), the purpase of which is lo engage in scivilies 1o promate he
Foundaticn and 1o prowde nleamabon and consullalkon 1o the Foundalion with respec o s activibes

Polsko-Amerykanski Fundusz Pozyczhowy Inicjatyw Ooywalelskich Sp. z oo ("PAFPIOT) is a separately
managed Subssdiary of the Foundabon which cdends loans 1o non-govermmental  coganizadions,
assocealicns and alher non-grall imlslves m Poland. On May 31, 2001, the Fund coninbuted 100% of he
shares of PAFPIO as a grant 1o the Foundabon, FPAFPID s an independent and disbnct bussness unit from
the Foundation and, given that the Foundation owns all the outstanding shares, PAFPIO is consolidated
wath B sccounls of the Fowndation, as regueened by accounding princsples gencrally accepted i the United
States of Amenica (U5, GAMPT),

2. BASIS OF PRESEMTATION

In accordance with LS. GAAP, the Corporation is required to dassily information regarding its consolidabed
fmancial positon and consolidated actnaties milo certain classes of net assels. Al December 31, 2020, the
entirg balance of net assels was classified as nel assels without donor restricicans and the Corposalbon had
no net asseis with donor restrichons and no net assets designated by the Board of Dweclors as restricted

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financal slatemenis are prepared in conformity with WS, GAARF and include the

accounts of the Foundabion and PAFPIO, the Foundation's only subsidiary. Al inflercompany balances
and ransachkons fanee Been eliminated in consolidation,

Lise of Eslimates

The preparation of the consclidated financial stalements in conformity with WS, GAAP requires
management ko make estimates and assemplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and kabilitics
and declosure of conbingent assets and babildies at the dale of the consolidated financal statements and
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

the reported amounts of income and expenses dunng e reporting pencd,  Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Inneesirments, at Fair Waloe

The Corporabion records invesiment ransaclions on e rade dale.  Interes] and deidend income,
unrealized appreciation and deprecialion and realized gams and kosses are reported i the consoldated
slatement of activities. The Corporation’s investmands are assets of the Foundation.  The Corporation
chngages professional investment managers and advisors who manage and monilos the Corparation’s
inwiesiments. See Mote 8 for more deladed dsclosures of e Corporation’s mnestments. Investiments, af
Fair value, are categonzed according o the “far value hierarchy” o measured at ned assel value "NANVT]
as descnbed below.

| i I+ i Wi, G 41 clari 1o the Fair L Higras

The Corporabon's invesimenis calegorized according to the “fair value hierarchy” are valued at fair valse
and disclosed according to the “fair value hierarchy® inihe Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™)
Accounting Standards Codificabon (CASCT) Topic 820, Fair Value Measuremenls and Dhsclosures. The
fanr valwe heirarchy defines far valoe as the pice thal would be recened 10 Sell an asset or paid 10 transfer
a lability im an oedery transachion betwesn make! padicipants al the measeremsnt date,  The
Corporalon’'s mwesiments calegonzed seconding bo e fair valie hierarchy are classdied as described
behor

Level 10 Inputs to the valeation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices availabie in active
markels lor ientical assets or Ehilities as ol the fEF!'!I'III'hj date;

Lavel 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology are olher than quoted prices in actve markets, which
are @ither dirgcty or indirectly obsersable as of the reporing date, and fair valee can be determined
thwough the use of modes or other valuation methodologies, and

Level 3: Inpuis to the valuation methodology are unobsersable in situations where there is litle or
ni market activity for the assel or liability and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumplions
refaod fo fhe priceng of the assel o Bability including asswemplions regarding risk.  The mputs inlo
thw determindaban of fair value require Sgnificant judgmenl. Dué 1o he inheren] uncertainty of these
eshmates. these values may differ matenally trom e values that would have been used had a
ready market for these assats and liabilities existed

A fimancial instrument’s level within 1he fair value higrarchy & based on he kneest ol amy ingal hal is
sagnificant to the tair value measurément, A descnplion of e valuaton methodologes used for
instruments measured at fair valee, including the general classification of swuch instruments parsuant o
thex Tair walue higrarchy, is presented balow:

Comman anod Preferred Stoacks amd Fuesd Incorme Secpnties: Equity and fixed mooms securities
(Polish government reasury secunlies) ane valued based upon e dosing prce &5 quoied cn major
exchanges Common and prefered slocks and certain figed income securifies are classified wathin
lewvel 1 of the far valuwe herarchy.

Bohiie Mufial Funds = Equaly and Fixed Income’ Thaese investments are pablic investman] vehicles
valued using the NAV prosded by the admenisirator of the mvesiment vetecle, The MAV for pulblic
mulual funds s & gquoted market pnce and classified within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020

Investments, at Fair Value, Measured atl Net Asset Value

I trments mesduned a1 MAN arg valwsd using the NAY of he imeestnent vehich as a praclical expesdient
The MAY 5 based on e value ol the underhang assets owned by e nvesiment vehetle, minus s
liabadies. The fair value of invesiments valued using MAY represents the portion of the NAY ocwned by the
Corporation, and are comprsad of Alternative Investments and Privale Mutual Fund — Equity:

Afferraloeg ipesiments: These mvesiments ang prnatle investmant vehicles valesd usmg the May
provided by the investment vehicle manager. Underdying investiments thal are determened by the
ineesiment vehsele manager to be alliqusd andior lacking a readily accessible markel value are
valued using current estimates provided by the investment vehicle manager. Valuation inpuds and
ristiod ologies ane determined by the meestment veheche manager.

Errvale Mudug! Fand — Equdy. This imvesiment s 2 pervatle mvestiment vehicle valeed using 1he MAY
prowided by the adminsirator of the mvestment vehicle. The MAVY for this private mutual fund is tha
MAW's und price which is quoted on a privale market that is not active; however, the unit price is
based cn underying imeestments which are aded on active markets and the Corparation can
redeem s investiment al the measuremenl dale o wilhin the near e wihoul redemption
restnclions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated siatement of cash flows, the Corporation consagders all highly ligued
financial instruments with an orgenal maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. At December 31, 2020, the Corporaton had no restricled cash.

Gramis and Granls Payable

Granls are recorded as grant expenss in the consolidated staternent of activiles and granis payable in
the consclidaled stetement of financial posibon when the grant is approved in accordance with policies
set by the Board of Directors, negobabons have been finalized with the grantee, and the parbes hawve
signed the grand agrociment

n o
Contmbutions are repored as income in the consolidaled stabement of activilies in the perod the gran
agregament bétwoen the Corporation and the donor 5 Ssgned 1o e extent there arg no donoe-imposed

conditions of fhene are doncr-mposed conddions Dul 1he ikelihood of e Corporatan net meeating swuch
conditions s remoie. In 2020 there were no contribiticns

Intarest and Dividend Income

Iiengs] ancome 5 recomized on an accrual ks, Dividend income is reaarded in the penod in which e
dradend 15 declared amd e l::l.'rl"p:ll'ﬂ[ﬂ'.ll'l was the holder af he secunly as of ihe recond dale

Foweign Currenty

The Corperabon's funclicnal and repeding cumency s 1he LS. dollar,  The funclional currency of iha
Repraseniative Office and FAFFPID is the Polish zloty. Income and expenses ransacted in Folish zialys
are franslated inlo United States dodlars during the year al current exchange rates. Polish zloty
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POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 21, 2020

denaminated assets and habilities are ranslaled at the year-end spot curréndy rabe, Remeasutement and
translation adjustments are reflected in the consclidated statement of actvities

Conated Services

The Corporation’s direclors recene no compensation or fees for senving as directors.  Such directors
donale significant amownls of thesr time to the Corporation. Mo amounts have been reflected in e
accompanying consohdated finanaal slatements lor such donaled senaces, inasmuch as no objective
basis is available to measure the value of such services., The Corporabon's chairman of the board o
directors (the “Chairman”) receives an honorarivm in exchange for his senices as the Chaimman. The
Corporabon's non-cxccutive Polish direclors receive 8 consulling fee for support of fhe Foundation's
prgrams in Poland. For the year ended December 31, 20200 the Lotal fees paid 6 all Pabsh directors and
the Chairman amounied to 593,137,

Dazpreciation and Amartizafion

Land and feed assets are inibally reconded at oost,  All hxed assels, other than land, which = nof
depreciated, are deprecisted on a siraight-line basis over ther estimated useful lives &s follows:  land
improvemeanis, 15 years, building, 39 years, and compuber equipment, software, furniture, equipmant and
automaobies, from thras to five years.

rabing Expenses

Prodessional serices aapenses of Board of Deeclors mealings, fees paid 10 Polish direciors and (b
Chairman, expenses lon travel, lodgeng and meals . adminisiralive expensaes, VAT, BAFPIO Polish incomea
tax and alowance for loan losses are classified as operabng expenses,

Corodif risk

Credit risk s (he possibilily hal 1055 may ocour from counterparty failure to perform according 1 the tenms
of & contract. Unless noted othervise, collateral or ather securty is not normally required by the
Corporation fo suppor financial instruments or loans with credit rsk. A December 31, 2030, the
Corporabon had credit exposure mainly from debt inslremenls in the Corporation’s investmenl portfclio and
loang eclended by PAFPICL The macormem nigk of 1058 o thiese assets s representsd Dy thasr réspsctneg
consolidated statement of ingncal posion amounts,

4. POLISH-AMERICAN EMTERPRISE FUMD GRAMNT

Pursuant bo an agreement sipned in 1999 betwean the Fund and the U S Govermment and in Consultaticn
wilh the Government of Boland, the Fund relumed 5120 milon of the Fund's assets o the U5, Teeasuny
and contnbuted ihe Fund's remaining asseis to the Foundation pursuant 1o @ grant agreement beteean the
Fund and the Foundabon (as amended, the “Grant Agreement®). The total amount the Fund coninibuted
o the Foundation was 52553 million, which was recorded as vorestncod net assots. According 1o tha
e of the final amendrment lo e Granl Agreemenlt, the Granl Agreemenl fermindaled upon he Fund's
dissolution on December 27, 2011 excep? thal certain provissans sunvivesd terminalion, induding thal e
U.S, Sovernment may require the Foundabon to return ihe assels recaived from the Fund, together with
any cammngs generated thercby, 1o the WS, Teeasury if the U 5 Government delermings that the
Foundalion has pronaded grants 1o or othersise Tmanced cedain proffiled acliviles,
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POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020

5 MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES

Thix Foundalion relies on setums on ils invesimen poofolio (the “Porifolio™) and PAFPIO relies an inleres)
income from knans to supgort spending for operations, which are the oosts incurmed 0 carmy out e missson
of the Foundaton and the misson of FAFFIO. The Foundation has adopled an investment policy o govemn
the managament of the Portfolio, which includes a spanding policy that provides that annual spanding,
which includes grants and operaling expenscs, shall be based on approxirmately 50% of the average
fuader-end Pofalio valee for the maost recen! dwelee quarters.  Approximately 83% of the Foundabion's
spending (& in Polish zlotys. The Foundalion seeks o mantain approxmalely two years of estimabed
spending in Polish zlobys. Al December 31, 2020, the Foundation held approximately 1.2 years of spending
in Polish zlctys. To meel cash needs for operations within one year of the balance sheet date, the
Corporabon had availabie liguid resowrces of 3271 million held in cash, In addidicn, $70.7 millkon of the
Corpoealon's imvestments at fair value have daily bguiddy. None of the Corporation’s cash or invesimenls
are subject o any donor or board restnctions.

G. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR WALLUIE

See "Invesimenis, al Far Value® in Mate 3, above, for discussion of the melhodobogies and assamglons
used 1o delermene ihe fair value of the Corporation’s Investments. The cost, fair value and accumulated
unrealized appreciabon on investments at December 31, 2020 is presented in the table below:

Accumulabed
Lirnrealized
Ciosl Fair Value Apprecialon
Investments Calegorized According
iz the Fair Value Hierarchy:
Common and Prefermed Slocks 5 21420314 £ 55202806 § 33.785.292
Faed Income Securities 15,423,202 15471933 48,71
Investmeanis Measured an HAa:
Alternative Investments 99181013 163148393 63,967 380
Private Mutual Fund - Equity 13,860,008 26997 713 13137727
5 149884 535 $ 260.822.585 £ 110.939.130

The net unfealzed agpreciation (depreciation) and nel realized gain J (loss) on invesiments for the year-
ended Decamber 31, 2020 is presanted in the table below:

Mel Unrealized
Apprecighon Met Realized Gain /
{Depreciation) (Lioss)
Inveskimenis Calegonzed According to
ihe Fair Valuee Hierarchy:
Common and Prefermed Slocks 5 (1,514,847} 5 B482521
Pubis: Mulual Funds - Equily 353,829 (2007 8326)
Frxed Incarme Secuntics [7.363) -
Pubdsc Mulual Fund - Fiod Incoms 44 034 18,752
Investmenls Measuned af WAV
Alternative Investments 28,500 Tas 2,054 515
Private BMutual Fund - Equity (277 781} -
3 27,107 B57 & 9527933
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el torth in the table below are the Corporabion’s invesiments as of December 31, 2030, al tair value on a
recurring hasis by the hierarchy levels descnbed in Nale 3

Chsalad Prices in
Active Markets

for identical Measured al
Ansels et Assat
{Lawel 1] Walue Todal
Investmants Calegonzed According
1o v Fasr Valug Higrarchy
Common and Prefomed Slock 5 b5 205 BOG - - 5 b5 208 BOG
Pubdic: hMubwal Fund - Figed InGom 15471833 - 15471932
Inecstments Measurod at Nay':
Altermative Invesimenls - 163, 148 393 163 148 393
Priwate Budual Fund - Equily - 26 99T T35 26997 733
5 TOGTY 538 5190146 126 5 260 B23 BES
o of lola! 2T 1% 72 9% 100.0%

For the year ended Dacember 31, 2020, the Foundation's investments, net of external and direct infermal
irreEsiment expenses had an anneal rale of vetum of 1313%.

Included in olher assels as of December 31, 2020 15 $16.0 mallion of the Corporalon’'s cash, which was
held in the subscrplion account of two new alernative investments funds until accepled by each fund,
which occurred on Januwary 1, 2021. The Corporation invested 58.0 million in one fund, which pursues a
kang-only equity stradegy in United States, Inlemational Developed and Emerging markeds. This fund has
Guartérky liguidity with a 30-day redemption nobce pericd.  The Corporation invesled 38.0 million in a
second Tund, wikch pursues a long-caty, intemational large-cap sirategy,  This hend has momnly liquidity
with A 30-day redempbion notice penod,  These invesiments will be valued using the KAW provided by tha
ivistment vahicle manager and will be classified as level 3 i the fair value higrarchy.

Presented inthe table below is a reconciliation Trom the apening balances (o the closing balances bor assets
categonzed wihin Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Altermative Private Mutual

IrveshmeEnls Fund - Efll]l|}l Teial
Dpening balancs T 147248834 5 2T 2TS524 5 175,224,278
Transhers intd Lewel 3 - - -
Translers oul ol Level 3
Todal ned gains for the panod
inchaded in tolal mcrease in nel
asseds withowd donos restnichons 20,564 310 (277,191 30,286 519
Purchases 10,7604 432 - 10,264 434
Sales (25,858 204 - (25 658 H04)
Closing Balance s 163148393 S 26897 T3 3 180 145 126
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Presenied in the fable below s information abowt the Corporabion’s invesiments valued wsing the NAY of
the investment vehicle &5 8 practical expedient, calegonized by investment strategy, &s of Decambser 31
2020:

Redemption Regdemption
Fair Valug Frequency Molice Pemnod
Allermative Irneestments:
Mul-strateqy 548,134 268 Cruarierly 2580 days (&}
Ermzrging markets 18,208 153 Bloalihy 20-80 days (b}
Long/short equily 33,320,025 Sea note 3020 days ]
Long Cioy 48 517,788 Sea note 3045 days [}
Private equity 14948107 Mol able o redeam Mot applicable (e}
163,148,353
Private Mutual Fund — Equity;
10 busingss (f
Internalonal 20 997 713 KMoalhly days
5 100,148,126

There arg no unlunded commilments 1o Dhe Corporation’s investiments ather han as dsclosed in note (@),
balow. Itis probable that the amount ultimately receivad if estments measured al MAY were to be sokd
would be differeni ihan the fair value of these investmenis al Decembear 31, 2020

a)  Mulb-strategy. This calegory includes allermatneg investiment funds that purses multiple sreestment
strategies, including long'shor equity, event driven, credit, merger arbitrage, destressed deibt and
private transachons pnmanly in the Umibed States and countries compnsing the Organezation for
Economic Co-aperalion and Development

b} Emerging markets: This category includes twio aliermnative invesiment funds thal pursue a long-
only strategy for invesiment in emerging markeis. One fund representing 55% of this category
primarily invests in companies eated in counlies that ame included in the MECI Emernging Markets
Incdee and the MSC) Fronticr Markels Index. The ather Tund representing 5% of s cabegory
invesis principally in companies established or oparating in emarging market and frontier coundries
principally in Asia, Easlern Europe, 1he Muddle East, Afnca and Latin Amenca. Redemplions may
B mecde: Trom these Tunds monthly

) Long'shor equity: This category includes three alternalive invesimant lunds ihal pursue long'short
equily stratlegees, One fund holds mieresis in five prevale oF illiqusd companees, «hich will be
lgquedaled as market opporlunibes, applicatde laws and transfer restnctions permd (1% of this
calegory). The other two funds invest in equities focused on the global technology, mada and
telecommunicabons sectors. 479 of the invesimeants in this calegony may be redeemed quarerly.
The percentages of imvesiments in this calegory that cannet be redeemed currenily are as 1elows
(a) 52%. which can be redeemed every thiee years beginnng afier January 1. 2022, and (b). 1%.
which cannot be redeemed.

d)} Long Only This caegory is compeised of three investments which focus on equity investments in
the heatthcare, mdustnal lechnology and consumes discrebionary seclors, 36% af the investiments

Polish-American Freedom Foundation

67



68

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLISH-AMERICAN FREEDOM FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020

£}

fy

in this category are redeamable monthly and 43% are redeemable quartery, 229% of the
invesiments in 1his category are redeemable once every thiee years upon 130 days prod notice
beginning on December 31, 2022 and on each three year anniversary afer that date.

Private equety. The Corporalion has invested in sesen privale aquily Tunds, These funds do not
prowide Tor redemplions as distnbubions ane expected to be made as he underlying assels are sokd
by the funds; i is not possibée 1o estimate the penod of me over which the underlying assets will
ba =old; pursuant to the fund documents, all distributions are due to be made by the lerminaton
date of cach tund, which may be extended. This cadogory s comprsed af (i) b imeaestiments n
privabe equity funds thal imvest n e enengy sector in Moth Amanca; the Corporaton has
commitbed 1o mvest 39,0 milien in hese luads, 34.5 milon 1o each, and, & Decemnber 31, 2020,
the Corporation’s remainang commitment to both funds was $0.8 million.  The ferminaton dates of
the first and second fund are in 2022 and 2025, respactively, (i) an imesimeant in two private equity
furnds that invest i expansion and growth-Stage healthcre investments prirnaridy in the specialty
pharmaceulcals, medical lechnologees and heallbcane Senaces seclors, the Corporalon has
commutted o invest 3100 milhon o these funds and, al December 31, 2020, the Corporabon’s
remaining commitment to both funds was $4.5 milion. The tfermination dates of the first and
sexcord fund are in 2025 and 2029, respectveby, (i) an ivestment inoa private eguity fund thal is
a delocation lwnd that is desigred 1o wmves! dounng penods of markel stress, with a foous on
stressed and distressed secunties, mamly n the Unded 3ates and DECD counines, the
Corporalion has committed to invest $5.0 mellion fo this fund and, al December 31, 2020, the
Corporation’s remaining commitmant 1o this fund was $3.4 million. The termination date for this
fured i i 2024, (v} an imeestment ina globally diversifeed portfolio of vanlee capital funds that
Als0 pursuds co-investment opportunities, the Corporabon has coommiled 10 meest 31,5 madlion 1o
thes fund and, at December 31, 2020, the Corporation’s semaining commidment 1e the fund was
508 milon.  The terminabon date of this fund is in 2031, and, (v] &n invesimeant in equity and
equity-ralaied mvestments poincipally inoa diversified group of venture capial and other private
equity funds. Bul also includmg equity and egquity-related investments in operaling companies, e
Corporalion has commidted o invest 31,5 mellion o this fund and, al December 31, 2020, the
Corporalion’s remaining commitment to this fund was 1.4 milion. The lermingbon date of this
fumd 5 in 2035,

Inlemabonal;  This category has one investment fund whose objective s o achieva long-term
growth pnmanty by investing in & diversiied poricho ol non-10Dast0 equily SecumleEs ol Companies
hocabed in any country aliver than the Unibed States.  The fund invests prmarby i estabished
international markats, however, a porlion of the fund's assats may ba imeestad in emerging market
secuntes and Curmences.
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. COROMNAVIRUS (COVID-19)

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Qrganization declared the coronavinus oulbreak a Public Health
Emergency of Mabonal Concem and, on March 11_ 2080, dedared i a pandemic (ihe “Pandemic™), The
ansel of the Pandems: caused a Sgnihicant dechng o ihe value of the Foundabion's invesiment Portdoha
By March 31, 2020, the Foundabon's investment porifolio had declined by $47.1 million, of 16.6%, a
significant decline from December 31, 201% net assets of 5285 .5 million. In practica the Pandemic has had
no impact on the Corporation's estimates, operations and assels. Subsaguently, the mvesiment porifolio
recovercd, and at December 31, 2020 nel assets warg 530647 million,  Ackons were laken arcund the
world and = Poland o help mitigate the spread of the Pandemic including restriclions on Irgnel,
quarantines, shelter-in-place orders and forced and voluntary closures of businesses and puble places
COVID-18 and actions laken to mitigale d have had and are expacted fo continue o have a segnifican
imgact on the econony of Poland. Managermen? is conlinually monitoring the podential mpact of COVID-
19 on the Corparation

8 LAND ANMD FIXED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2020, land and fixed asscts consisied of:

Lamd 51,915,359
Land smprovements 174,158
Buslding 2,788,802
Compuler equepment and soitwane 123,293
Furnifture and equipment 292,292
Arlomohiles 2815

5355409
Less - Adccurmulated depreciation and amorization 1,181 427
Met ook value 54,183,882

9 FUMCTIONMAL CLASSIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF EXPEMSES

Set Torth below are the Corporabion's expenses for the yeas ended December 21, 2020, reported by
Tunctional expense classikoalion,

Decreases n
Wﬁﬁuﬁsﬁﬁw Program hlanagemeani
Restrchons Services and Genaral
and Grants
Employes compensation and benefits 51,431 84 5804432 5437 508
Cperaling expenses 261,968 118,734 242 174
CuCupancy 114 020 F7. 100 35 920
Depreciaton and amaortizataon 124 802 T8 862 45 840
Todal decrease in net asseis wathou
donor restriclions 223273 1,270,188 962 543
Granis 12,782 463 12,7923 463
Grants and decrease in net assets
withoud donod restnclons £ 15,025, 194 14,082 651 L2062 543
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The costs of the Corporation's operations incurred fo carry out the mission of the Foundation and the
mission of PAFPIO are classifed as grans and decreases in net assats wilhoul donor restriclions in the
Consodabed Slaterment of Actnaties (CDecreases in Mel Assels withcul Donor Restnctions™). Program
services consist of senaces rendsred 10 benaficaanes thal fullll the missson of the Foundation and the
mission of FAFFIO ("Program Services™). Managemant and general expenses are all cther aclivites of
the Corporation and PAFRIO that support program serices (‘Managemen? and General’).  The
Corporation had no fundrasing expenses in 2020, Included on the Stalement of Activilies are Decreases
in het Assets withou! Dondr Restrictions that are atinbatable 1o (i) Program Services and (n) Managemient
and General which requirg thal expenses be allceated o those lunclional expense classdications on @
reasonable basis that is consstently apphed. Emgloyes compensalion and benefils and deprecialion and
amodization are allecaled by employee based on estimates of time and efiod spemt on the Program
Serces and Management and General classifications. The majodby of aperaling expenses by their naurne
arz nol programmatic espenses and ane allocaled 1o the Manggemen! and General dassificalon
Oocupancy 15 allocated based on square footage and estimates by employes of time and effort spenl on
the Frogram Serdices and Managemeni and General classificabons.

10, LOAMS AND ALLOWAMNCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans arg generaled by PAFPID and ane staled at the prendaial amount culstanding phus aconied interest
reduced by an allowance for loan losses.  Inerest om loans is credited to income based on principal
amounts culstanding at applicable rates. The accrual of interast is discontinuead when the loan agresment
i5 lerminabed or there s doubl regarding collectability.

The allcwsanca for loan losses s mainiained at a level determined by FAFFIO managemeant 1o adequately
albsorh pobential kossas in the loan portfolo. This determination = based on the exposure (o loss related to
spacific bormower siteations, including ther fnancial position, payment hisfory and collaleral values, and
ciher rebevant factors and esbmates winch ang subpect o changs over bme, Estmaling the risk of loss and
amcant of kass on any an is necessanly subjective and ulbmats los5es may vary from current estimates
These eshmales are reviesed by PAFPIO management periodcally and, as adjustments becomea
necessary, are reported in thae panods in which they become known. The allowance for loan losses is (i)
increased by provisions for loan losses chargad to operations, (i) decreased by recovenes of loans
preeoushy pronaded for in the allowance for loan losses and (i decreased by wie-offs, Collection offorts
condinues after @ laan is changed-olf by PAFPID Management and fufure reécovenss may ooour

Changes in the PAFPIO allowance for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2020 wera as follows:

Beginning balance 5 559835
Additional prcnasion changed o aperalions 26 347
Recovenes ol loans previously provided foc o

allowance for koan losses (4,524
Loang wiilten-cil {278.957)
Foreign currendy iramslabion adjustment ¥.071
Balance, end of year 5 309370

11, COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALAMCE SHEET COMMITIMENTS

As of December 31, 2020, the Corporation had approved 22 programs botaling $16.2 million thal wera
subject to the completion of grant negoliaticns and the signing of grant agresments to the satisfaction of
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all parlies. Subsequen to December 31, 2020 the Corporation signed grant agreements for these approved
programs in the fofal amount of $8.3 million,

Al December 31, 2020, PAFPID had granted quaraniees in the amouwnt of 5419062 to secure the
performance of three Polish non-govermmental organizations ("KNGOS™) under grant agreemeanis and loans
The guaranieses expire as follows: $6,652 on Agnl 30, 2021 and 5412410 on December 31, 2022, To ihe
axtent the NGO beneficianes of these guarantees do not perform, PAFPIO would be cbbgated in the
amunts set forh above, A% of December 31, 2020, ang guarantes in the amount of 38 652 has bean fully
resered for based on manegemen?’s pedgment of the Gnancial situation of the Borrower of @ loan that
PAFPIO guaraniesd

12. TAX STATUS
Uniled Slatles

The Fourdation is exempt from U5, Federal income faxes under Seckon 501(c)i4) of the ULS. Infernal
Rigsrenue Codo (the "Code). In additon, the Foundatcon s exempt from sfate and local incarme {awees.

Polamd

The Representative Ofice is nol subject 1o Polish corporate income axation. PAFPIO s a Polish limibed
liabisty corporabon subject o Polish Corporate mcome lax.  For the year ended December 31, 2020,
PAFPIQ incuared 521 B4A7 of income fax expense, which is included in operating  expenses in the
consalidated statement of activilies.

13 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Corgoration has evalualed subsequent evenis throegh Apnl 30, 2031, he dale (he consolidabed
financial slalemenis were available 1o be issued, and has determined 1hal there were no events requinng
consideration as adjusiments 1o, or dischosures in, the conschidated financial statements as of and for 1he
year énded December 31, 2020
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

* as of June 2021

ANDREW NAGORSKI - CHAIRMAN

Award-winning journalist and author, former foreign correspondent
and senior editor of Newsweek International

JOSEPH C. BELL
Senior Counsel, Hogan Lovells

ALFRED B. BIEC

Former Undersecretary of State, Office of the Council of Ministers,
Secretary of the Government's Economic Committee, former President
and CEO of the Bank PEKAO New York and the Post Bank

ANNA FORNALCZYK

Former President of the Polish Office for Competition
and Consumer Protection

CHRISTOPHER HILL

Chief Advisor to the Chancellor for Global Engagement and Professor
of the Practice in Diplomacy, University of Denver; former U.S.
Ambassador to Irag, Republic of Korea, Poland, Macedonia, and Special
Envoy to Kosovo, former Assistant Secretary for East Asia/Pacific Affairs

GEOFFREY HOGUET
Managing Member, GRH Holdings, LLC

JOHN KASNICKI
Managing Director on the Investment Team, Summit Rock Advisors

KATARZYNA KIELI

President and Managing Director of Discovery Europe,
Middle East and Africa

JERZY KOZMINSKI

Former Polish Ambassador to the United States, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Polish-American Freedom Foundation

KRZYSZTOF PAWLOWSKI

President of the High School of Business-National Louis
University in Nowy Sacz, former Polish Senator

CARLA H. SKODINSKI
Vice President and Chief Investment Officer, KCM, LLC

SYLWIA WILKOS

Chief Executive Officer, Scorpio Studio; academic teacher
in social and political studies

reedom Foundation

FORMER MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

MAREK BELKA -2000-2010

MICHAL BONI - 2000-2008

COLIN G. CAMPBELL - in 2000 roku
DAVID NIEMIEC - 2011-2020

JOHN P. BIRKELUND t -2000-2019
FREDERICK M. BOHEN Tt - 2003-2013
ZBIGNIEW BRZEZINSKI t - 2000-2015
JOHN H'DARMS t - 2000-2002
ROBERT G. FARIS t - 2000-2015
ALEKSANDER KOJ T -2000-2010
NICHOLAS A. REY T - 2000-2009



MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

* as of June 2021

President and Chief Executive Officer
JERZY KOZMINSKI

Head of the Representative Office
GRZEGORZ JEDRYS

Program Directors

RADOSEAW JASINSKI

JOANNA LEMPART

MARIANNA HAJDUKIEWICZ

AGNIESZKA MAZUR

RENATA KOZLICKA-GLINSKA (parental leave)

Program Officers

MIROSEAW CZYZEWSKI
KATARZYNA SWIATKIEWICZ

KALINA GRZESZUK-ZAJACZKOWSKA

Chief Accountant
AGNIESZKA KWIATKOWSKA

Programs'’ Financial Controller
JUSTYNA PODRAZA

Public Relations Specialist
PRZEMYSEAW ZARON

Analyst
MACIE] MAKULSKI

Accounting
GRAZYNA SKRZYPIEC

Assistants / Administration:
KAROLINA REWSKA (maternity leave)
TOMASZ WQOJCIECHOWSKI

JULIA CHECINSKA

IZABELA STAWSKA
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Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
Secretary to the Board of Directors

NORMAN E. HASLUN IlI

Senior Consultant
C. DOUGLAS ADES
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